

Department of History



Research Tools
Department of History
University of Essex
First published 2004 re-published Dec. 2012

© Department of History, University of Essex ISBN 978-1-909562-00-4 ISSN 2051-9575

Census schedules and listings, 1801–1831: an introduction and guide

Richard Wall, Matthew Woollard and Beatrice Moring

Research Tools

No. 2

First published in 2004 Re-published in December 2012 by Department of History, University of Essex Colchester, Essex CO4 3SQ

© Department of History, University of Essex

ISBN 978-1-909562-00-4 ISSN 2051-9575

Contents

Introduction	2
BEDFORDSHIRE	15
BERKSHIRE	16
BUCKINGHAMSHIRE	18
CAMBRIDGESHIRE	20
CHESHIRE	24
CORNWALL	27
CUMBERLAND	28
DERBYSHIRE	28
DEVON	33
DORSET	35
DURHAM	
ESSEX	
GLOUCESTERSHIRE	
HAMPSHIRE	
HEREFORDSHIRE	
HERTFORDSHIRE	
HUNTINGDONSHIRE	
KENT	
LANCASHIRE	
LEICESTERSHIRE	
LINCOLNSHIRE	
LONDON	
MIDDLESEX	
NORFOLK	
NORTHAMPTONSHIRE	
NORTHUMBERLAND	
NOTTINGHAMSHIRE	
OXFORDSHIRE	
SHROPSHIRE	
SOMERSET	
STAFFORDSHIRE	
SUFFOLK	
SURREY	
WARWICKSHIRE	
WESTMORLAND	
WILTSHIRE	
WORCESTERSHIRE	
YORKSHIRE	138

Pre-1841 population census schedules and lists

Introduction

This guide gives details of census listings created for the four English censuses of 1801, 1811, 1821 and 1831. For these censuses there are, generally speaking, three types of records to be found in archives. The first are complete listings, which contain individual-level (and often nominal) information about all the residents of a parish or township at the relevant census date; the second are 'household' listings which contain information about each household within the parish. These often have nominal information about the head of the household, but this is not always the case; and third, copies of tabulations which were sent to the census office in London, and are essentially only the 'statistical' information which relates to that particular parish for that census. This guide generally covers only the first two of these forms of return.¹

These returns have value to local historians as well as to genealogists. The latter group has, to date, been the most frequent user of this form of source because the listings include nominal information. They have value to the local historian for the same reason, but also because they sometimes contain information about household and occupational structure and are extant for a period in which few other sources provide this information. However, they have not been systematically been analysed for these purposes. The intention of the authors was initially to draw up a complete list of extant listings using the guides published by Gibson and Chapman,² and annotate specifying the type of information provided for both individuals and households. It soon became clear that this was not possible given the large number of these listings which survive, but it also seemed unwarranted to simply produce a guide to those listings which were in the Cambridge Group Library. Hence, this hybrid working document, which attempts to catalogue all such listings

-

¹ A fourth type of return also exists in the form of the Clergyman's returns for 1831. See S. A.Royle, 'Clergymen's returns to the 1831 census'. *Local Historian*, 14 (1980), 79–90 and S. A. Royle, 'Illegitimates recorded in the 1831 Clergymen's returns', *Local Population Studies*, 26 (1981), 41–42. These returns are at TNA.

² Colin R. Chapman, *Pre-1841 censuses and population listings* (Dursley: Lochin Publishing, 5th ed., 1998); Jeremy Gibson with Mervyn Medlicott, *Local census listings*, 1522–1930: *Holdings in the British Isles* (2nd ed., 1994).

and provide a detailed guide to those which are available from the Cambridge Group.³ We hope that within a couple of years we will, with the assistance of others, be able to produce a fully annotated guide to almost all of the extant listings from England and Wales, and perhaps an introduction to listings elsewhere in the British Isles.

History

The first census in Great Britain was taken in 1801, and its history has been well documented within Higgs' two introductory guides to the census returns.4 The first census Act (41 Geo. III, c.15), entitled 'An Act for taking an Account of the Population of Great Britain, and the increase or diminution thereof', was not simply the legislation to count the numbers of persons, families and houses in the country, but also an attempt to discover whether the population was increasing or decreasing by requiring counts of the numbers of baptisms, burials for every tenth year between 1700 and 1780, and then annually. Annual totals of marriages were to be provided beginning in 1734. The Act contained a schedule containing six questions, the first three of which were posed to the 'overseers of the poor' or 'other substantial householders', and the other three to the parish clergy. The first three questions (reproduced below) relate to the current population, while the latter three relate to the numbers of baptisms, burials and marriages recorded in the parish registers.5

- 1. How many Inhabited Houses are there in your Parish, Township or Place; by how many Families are they occupied; and, how many Houses therein are Uninhabited?
- 2. How many Persons (including Children of whatever Age) are there actually found within the Limits of your Parish, Township, or Place, at the Time of taking this Account, distinguishing

³ The Cambridge Group for the Study of Population and Social Structure, Department of Geography, Sir William Hardy Building, Downing Place, Cambridge, CB2 3EN.

⁴ Edward Higgs, Making sense of the census: the manuscript returns for England and Wales, 1801–1901 (London: Public Record Office, 1989) and Edward Higgs, A clearer sense of the census: the Victorian censuses and historical research (London: H.M.S.O., 1996).

⁵ Census of Great Britain, 1801, Abstract of the Answers and Returns: enumeration. Part I England BPP 1801–2 VI, i.

Males and Females, and exclusive of Men actually serving in His Majesty's Regular Forces or Militia, and exclusive of Seamen either in His Majesty's Service or belonging to Registered Vessels?

3. What Number of Persons in your Parish, Township, or Place are chiefly employed in Agriculture; how many in Trade, Manufactures, or Handicraft; and how many are not occupied in any of the preceding Classes?

A proforma answer form (or schedule) for these questions for overseers and 'other substantial householders' to complete was pre-circulated to Clerks of the Peace and Town Clerks who were to send them to Justices of the Peace and to High Constables or other proper Officers so that these could be received by the Overseers of the Poor and substantial householders. Forms for the clergy also followed this route. The schedule, once completed was to be attested to or affirmed in front of a JP and then endorsed by the High Constables or other proper officer before being returned to the Principal Secretary of State for the Home Department. These forms were later abstracted under the guidance of John Rickman, then secretary to Charles Abbot, who had introduced the census bill in Parliament in 1800.

The schedules demonstrate how the overseers or other substantial households were to remit their returns to the census office. In order to complete the form satisfactorily it would have helped the overseer or enumerator to make a list of the houses and the characteristics of each household, and then add them up to complete the form. This list would have been most useful if all households were listed indicating the numbers of persons within them comprised in the relevant categories (such as males and females, and the number of persons employed in agriculture, trade or other employments). Making a list with details of all the people in the parish would not have been so useful for this purpose, nevertheless a number of individual-level listings do survive for 1801.

4

⁶ A re-typeset version of this pro-forma is published in the 1801 census volume. This version is reproduced in Higgs, *Making sense*, 114.

Thus the lists which survive for 1801 (and the subsequent years) are essentially notes, and are not official documents, like the enumerators' books for the period 1841 and onwards.

In 1811 similar questions to 1801 were posed to the overseers. Changes included the number of houses being built as distinguished from those simply uninhabited and the number of families (rather than persons) chiefly "employed or maintained by" the three economic groupings from 1801. Again, in order to provide this information, overseers would almost certainly have had to create a list of householders and tabulate the information themselves.

At the following census some basic information relating to the age structure of the parish was asked for, if it could be collected "in a manner satisfactory to yourself, and not inconvenient to the parties".⁷ Where this information was collected there would have been a greater chance for the production of an individual-level listing as it would have facilitated the rapid production of figures for the census authorities. However, many of the enumerators were content to provide counts, in different groups for each household, of the numbers of persons in different age groups for each household.

For the final pre-enumerator census, in 1831, there were considerable changes in the occupational questions. Details of these alterations can be found in Higgs (1989), and the questions are reproduced in Gatley's description of this census.⁸ Again the answers to the questions would have been more easily calculated from individual (or household) lists, but the known surviving lists are less numerous than for 1811.

What is also of interest, is that a number of these listings contain information which was not pertinent to the census. Higgs gives a number of examples, such as bastardy cases in Smalley in Derbyshire in 1801, religion in Marnhull and Shaftsbury St. James, both Dorset, and Warburton, Cheshire in 1821. In the 1821 listing for Hendon, the rent

_

⁷ Census of England and Wales, 1821, Abstract of the answers and returns... BPP 1822 XV, 6.

⁸ David Alan Gatley, *An introduction to the 1831 census* (Stoke-on-Trent: Victorian Census Project, Staffordshire University, 2003).

⁹ Higgs, Making sense, 25.

and numbers of both windows and dogs were enumerated for each household.

This guide lists a total of 793 listings – a far cry from the 27 known to the Cambridge Group in 1969. What is indisputable is that this guide is incomplete. New lists have been drawn to the authors continuously during the production of this guide, and it is clear that many more of these listings remain undiscovered. 11

Table 1. Type of surviving listings by census year.

		Type of listing		
YEAR	Household	Individual	Not known	Total
1801	125	15	5	145
1811	196	10	8	214
1821	231	32	8	271
1831	130	16	15	161
Total	682	73	36	791

Note: The dating of seven lists is uncertain; 3 were probably taken in 1801, two in 1811 and one each in 1821 and 1831.

Table 1 which tabulates the type of listings surviving for each year shows two interesting features. First the distribution of surviving lists over time; the number surviving for 1831 shows a marked decrease on the two preceding years. Second, the number of lists and in particular the number of individual lists for 1821 is greater than for all other years. The increase in known individual lists can be accounted for by the asking of the question on age, but the reason for the overall number is unclear.

The geographical distribution of the known surviving listings is unremarkable. There are at least two listings surviving for each county in England with the exception of Rutland. Almost 10 per cent of known surviving listings are from Yorkshire, and a further 18 per cent are from the three East Anglian counties of Norfolk, Suffolk and Essex.

¹⁰ 'Pre-1841 census enumerators's schedules', Local Population Studies, 2 (1969), 53–54.

¹¹ For example, David Wright's *The Kentish census returns*, 1801–1901. Origins, location, registration districts and indexes (Whitstable, Kent: The Author, 2003), was brought to our attention just before the completion of this introduction.

Table 2. Geographical distribution of known surviving pre-1841 census listings.

			YEAR		
COUNTY	1801	1811	1821	1831	Total
BEDFORDSHIRE	0	1	3	4	8
BERKSHIRE	5	4	5	3	17
BUCKINGHAMSHIRE	3	2	5	3	13
CAMBRIDGESHIRE	5	5	5	1	16
CHESHIRE	2	2	2	4	10
CORNWALL	1	1	3	0	5
CUMBERLAND	0	1	3	0	4
DERBYSHIRE	5	7	10	1	23
DEVON	2	1	9	1	13
DORSET	4	2	10	3	19
DURHAM	0	0	1	1	2
ESSEX	7	27	19	18	71
GLOUCESTERSHIRE	5	7	12	2	26
HAMPSHIRE	3	6	9	3	21
HEREFORDSHIRE	1	1	0	0	2
HERTFORDSHIRE	2	0	2	0	4
HUNTINGDONSHIRE	0	1	3	0	4
KENT	9	11	7	6	33
LANCASHIRE	4	5	4	3	16
LEICESTERSHIRE	3	3	5	1	12
LINCOLNSHIRE	2	4	6	5	17
LONDON	4	13	14	14	45
MIDDLESEX	7	5	7	7	26
NORFOLK	11	5	14	5	35
NORTHAMPTONSHIRE	0	5	6	4	15
NORTHUMBERLAND	0	1	1	0	2
NOTTINGHAMSHIRE	3	6	7	4	20
OXFORDSHIRE	3	4	8	2	17
SHROPSHIRE	2	1	8	4	15
SOMERSET	4	11	7	3	25
STAFFORDSHIRE	5	4	2	4	15
SUFFOLK	7	6	11	8	32
SURREY	9	12	5	10	36
SUSSEX	1	7	10	9	27
WARWICK	4	4	14	10	32
WESTMORLAND	1	2	0	0	3
WILTSHIRE	4	4	6	6	20
WORCESTERSHIRE	1	2	6	4	13
YORKSHIRE	16	31	22	8	77
Grand Total	145	214	271	161	791

In summary the origin of many lists lies with the format of the questions posed by the census authorities. The fact that some of the questions were being addressed specifically to the overseers of the poor or the clergy has meant that the majority of the lists which survive are to be found with other parish records. These listings are of interest to historians of all persuasions because of the nature of the information which they provide on individuals and households. Members of the Cambridge Group, in particular Peter Laslett and Richard Wall, have used these listings to study household composition during this period.

The listings collection of the Cambridge Group

Over the course of several decades the Cambridge Group has collected photocopies of many of the lists of inhabitants of parishes and townships in England and Wales between 1523 (the earliest located) and 1841 (after which enumerations books survive for successive decennial censuses). These lists were compiled for a variety of purposes, for example the collection of taxes, surveys of the poor, examination of religious practice and after 1801 as part of the national decennial census. In some instances the motive for enumeration remains obscure. Initial criteria set by Peter Laslett for inclusion in the collection were coverage of the total population of the parish or township and division of that population into a series of units considered by Laslett as representing households.¹² In practice a considerable number of lists which do not meet these criteria have been added to the collection over the years either because of the exceptional detail provided on sections of the population (for example on the family circumstances of the poor) or to expand the coverage of a particular population (as in the case of cities that were divided into a number of wards or parishes). A few lists compiled after 1841 have also been acquired. In addition, as Peter Laslett himself recognised, in some cases the failure of the list to cover the entire population only becomes apparent after considerable detailed research has been undertaken. 13 Laslett was also aware that not all the name blocks might represent households and although it is customary

-

¹² See Peter Laslett, 'The study of social structure from listings of inhabitants' in E.A. Wrigley ed., *An introduction to English historical demography* (London: Weidenfeld and Nicolson, 1966), 180 and Peter Laslett and Richard Wall, eds, *Household and family in past time* (Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 1972), 25 and 129.

¹³ Laslett, 'Study of social structure', 178.

to refer to the units identified in the lists as households, it is important to recognise, as discussed below, that different definitions may have been applied by different enumerators.¹⁴

This guide gives details of all known returns which are either individual or household level produced for the censuses after 1801 and before 1841. The guide also includes some non-census listings taken during the same period. These are not exhaustive, and only cover those held at the Cambridge Group Library. Considerably greater detail has been provided for all the lists of inhabitants in the Cambridge Group collection. Not all such lists that survive for this period have made their way into the Cambridge Group collection, priority having been given to the acquisition of lists which provide more detail on the inhabitants than required for the national census, specified the ages of the inhabitants (as in the case of enumerations conducted for the census of 1821, or where several lists survive for different census years.) This element of the guide expands and corrects two earlier assessments of the quality of the lists, the first originating with Peter Laslett (and held on manuscript at the Cambridge Group), 15 and the second published in successive issues of Local Population Studies beginning with volume 24 in 1980.

After 1801 most lists are one or other of the following types: enumerations required for the national decennial censuses, accounts of religious observances, and surveys of the poor. The two latter categories of list are generally less complete in their coverage of a local population than a census enumeration. Surveys of the poor provide less detail on wealthier inhabitants (or even omit them altogether) while surveys of religious observance through their focus on the family rather than on the household, tend not to record the presence of servants or inmates although some reference may be made to the absence from families of particular children due to service. As is the case with lists taken before 1801, enumerations, whether taken in conjunction with the censuses of for other purposes rarely record how the resident population or the household have been defined. Their definitions have therefore to be inferred from whom they list and who appears to have been omitted. For example, the omission of any reference in these lists to the presence

¹⁴ Laslett and Wall, 127 note 5.

¹⁵ For a specimen return see Laslett 'Study of social structure', 178–181.

of visitors in some household suggests that the lists record the population resident at their usual address (the *de jure* population) rather than those present at a particular address on a given night (the *de facto* population) which was selected as the population base for the mid-Victorian and later censuses.

All lists are recorded in the body of the guide, in alphabetical order, by county. Every listing contains four key pieces of information:

Location	This is the physical location of the original or a copy of
	the list;
Source	The source of the information. Where this is missing, it
	means that information for the listing has come from the
	publication or transcription listed later in that entry;
Pop.	This gives the population totals for the relevant census
	year from the published census reports.
Туре	This classifies the listing by its type. Individuals (I) or by
	households (H). At present many of entries contain the
	entry (?) as the list has not been examined by the
	authors. A very small number of entries are included
	which contain just statistics (S). (We have not sought to
	collect details of all such listings as it would make this
	guide unmanageable.)

If there is a known publication or transcription of the listing, then this is detailed within the entry. Some of these listings have been published on the WWW and while an attempt has been made to trace all lists so published it is likely that some have eluded our observation.

For all those listings where there is a copy at the Cambridge Group, there is additional information. In the case of lists of householders (H) the number of members of each unit is usually specified, and sometimes the numbers of each sex and (as with enumerations for the 1821 census) the numbers of males and females in each household in age groups through to 90+. Lists which record the size of the household were defined as those where clear boundaries have been drawn between groups of names (through numbering, or insertion of lines, spaces or (where appropriate) other headings such as a relationship or occupation) *and* a list is not obviously incomplete due to the omission of

certain sections of the population such as servants and inmates. However, no attempt has been made in this guide to indicate what definitions may have been applied to distinguish one block of names from another although many of the enumerations taken in conjunction with the censuses of 1801–1831 appear to report persons per house rather than per household. This can be inferred from the recording of the poorhouse or workhouse as the equivalent of any other unit and the reporting as one unit of houses occupied by several families. Yet, conversely, other lists note that some units that they listed separately, occupied just one house, but without specifying how the property had been divided (The Puddletown listing of 1724 is exceptional in recording how houses and outbuildings were occupied by different listings.)

The information given in the lists which identify individuals also varies and can include name (first and last), age, sex, and marital status, the presence in the household of a spouse and children, relatives (persons related to the head of the household other than as their spouse or child), servants and inmates or lodgers, and occupations. More detail is usually provided on the head of the household than on other members. This is particularly the case in respect of names, marital status and occupation. Women who head households in widowhood were more likely to have their marital status specified than were men. However, the inclusion of the information on widowhood encouraged omission by the enumerator of the widow's first name. The occupations of the men who headed a household were also more frequently specified than were those of women. In the guide the sections of the population on whom information is provided have been indicated by the use of the following abbreviations: H (household heads), M (males) F (females, C (children) and A (adults). Instances where information has been provided for some but not all individuals in a particular category for reasons that are unclear are marked with a % in the appropriate section of the guide. Lists with additional details (for example on communicants, church and school attendance), which were taken in a census year but appear not to be part of the census, or raise particular problems of interpretation are identified in the notes field.

Evidence of further inconsistencies is likely to emerge from a more detailed examination of specific lists. The most reliable of the lists are probably those that specify each person by their relationship to the head

of the household, identifying spouse, sons and daughters, the exact relationship to the head of any other related persons, and any resident servants, boarders and lodgers. Few lists, however achieve recording of this quality and other lists have to be examined to provide a fuller survey of the extent of the variation over time and by region in the size and composition of family and household. The evidence of the poorer quality lists, however, needs to be used with care. For example, although the guide indicates whether a particular list includes information on relatives (other than spouse and children), servants and lodgers this does not necessarily mean that all such persons have been identified. The presence in a list of some persons whose relationship to the household head is not specified provides one indication of omissions. It is also worth bearing in mind that lists which use child rather than son or daughter to describe relationships to the household head may have included with the term 'child' a certain number of grandchildren, nieces and nephews even though other relationships involving the senior generation, the parents of the head for example, are specified.

Acknowledgements

Claire Soulié, Manuel Barcia and David Borg-Muscat did some of the data entry and/or assisted with the formatting of the guide. The University of Essex Research Promotion Fund allowed Beatrice Moring and Richard Wall to re-examine the Cambridge Group Listings. The University of Essex History Department has materially assisted in the publication of this guide.

Advertisement

This publication is known to be deficient – details of known listings are incomplete and details of as yet unlocated listings are lacking. This guide is thus offered as a 'working' document for interested parties to correspond with the authors with either additional details of either new listings or fuller details of known listings.

A version of this document will shortly be available at: http://www.histpop.org.uk/pre41 and all updates will be transferred to this version.

Matthew Woollard AHDS History UK Data Archive University of Essex Colchester CO4 3SQ

Abbreviations

BedRO Bedfordshire and Luton Archives and Record Office

BedCL Bedford Central Library
BerRO Berkshire Record Office
BriRO Bristol Record Office

CamRO Cambridgeshire Record Office

CAMPOP Cambridge Group for the Study of Population and Social

Structure

CBS Centre for Buckinghamshire Studies
CCA Canterbury Cathedral Archives
CKS Centre for Kentish Studies
ChsRO Cheshire Record Office
CorRO Cornwall Record Office

COWAC City of Westminster Archives Centre

DerRO Derbyshire Record Office
DorRO Dorset Record Office
DurRO Durham Record Office

ERYArc East Riding of Yorkshire Archives and Records Service

EssRO Essex Record Office

GLRO Greater London Record Office HamRO Hampshire Record Office HerRO Herefordshire Record Office

HertRO Hertfordshire Archives and Local Studies

HunRO Huntingdon Record Office
KAS Kent Archives Service
LanRO Lancashire Record Office
LicRO Lichfield Record Office
LinA Lincolnshire Archives
NorRO Norfolk Record Office

NotAO Nottingham Archives Office

OxfRO Oxford Record Office
ShrRO Shropshire Record Office
SomRO Somerset Record Office
StaRO Staffordshire Record Office

SuffRO Suffolk Record Office (branches of Ipswich and Lowestoft)

SurRO Surrey History Service
WarRO Warwickshire Record Office
WilRO Wiltshire Record Office
WSusRO West Sussex Record Office
WYAS West Yorkshire Archive Service

BEDFORDSHIRE

Ampthill 1831

Location: BedRO
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,688
Type: H

Bedford, St. Mary 1831

Location: BedRO P81/18/1 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 879 Type: H

Bedford, St. Peter 1821

Location: BedCL; Copy in BedRO 130 BED

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 653 Type: H

Notes: In some families all named with ages.

Blunham 1821

Location: BedRO P76/28/2 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 540 Type: H

Haynes 1821

Location: BedRO P6/28/3 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 775 Type: H

Kensworth 1811

Location: BedRO P34/28/13 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Type: H

Ravensden 1831

Location: BedRO X65/147 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 258 Type: H Silsoe 1831

Location: BedRO P54/28/21, and transcript in BedRO CRT 130 SIL 14

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 726 Type: H

BERKSHIRE

Binfield 1801

Location: BerRO D/P 18/18/3/1–2; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Chapman

Pop: 808

Type: I

Size: Χ All firstnames: Χ C Ages: Head's surname: Χ All surnames: Sex: Χ Marital Status: Η Wife: Χ Kin· Χ Son/Daughter: Servants: Χ Children: Χ All Relationships: Χ Lodgers: Few 889 Occupations: Population: Head's firstname: Est. Households: 183

Notes: Maiden name of wife of head; names and ages of children who had

left the parental home and whether married; parish of settlement if not Binfield (probably incomplete); location of dwelling on parish

map. List independent of census.

Publications: Berkshire FHS Journal, 3 (1978). For analysis see: Margaret Escott,

'Residential mobility in a late eighteenth-century parish: Binfield, Berkshire, 1779–1801', Local Population Studies, 40 (1988), 20–35.

Blewbury 1811

Location: BerRO D/P 20/28/5 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 630 Type: H

Brightwalton (aka Bright-Waltham) 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 450

Type: H

Notes: Only part parish

Brightwell 1811

Location: BerRO
Source: Chapman
Pop: 473
Type: H

Brightwell 1801

Location: BerRO Source: Chapman Pop: 491

Type:

Caversham 1821

Location: BerRO Source: Chapman

Type: H

Cumnor 1811

Location: BerRO D/P 45/18/2 and Mf.102

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,081 Type: H

Notes: Chapman gives parish as Comner

Earley (Sonning) aka (Sonning Early) 1821

Location: BerRO D/P/ 113/18/2 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 447 Type: H

East Hendred 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 863
Type: H

East Hendred 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 865
Type: H

Hampstead Marshall 1801

Location: BerRO D/EX/ 10pp 38–39 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: Gibson/Chapman 271

Type: 271

Hungerford 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,130
Type: I

Hungerford 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,130
Type: I

Newnham 1811

Location: BerRO D/P 161b/28/1 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Type: H

Pangbourne (aka Pangbourn) 1801

Location: BerRO D/P 91/28/1 and Mf. 197

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 593 Type: H

Sellingford (aka Shellingford aka Shillingford) 1831

Location: BerRO
Source: Chapman
Pop: 246
Type: H

Tilehurst 1801

Location: BerRO D/P 132/18/10 and Mf. 414

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,353 Type: H

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE

Beachampton 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 187
Type: H

Chenies 1821

Location: CBS PR42/7/1 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 595 Type: H

Notes: Draft

Chesham 1821

Location: CBS PR44/18/33 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 5,032 Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Iver 1821

Location: CBS
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,663
Type: H

Iver 1801

Location: CBS PR115/7/1 and photocopy Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,377 Type: H

Lathbury 1811

Location: CBS
Source: Chapman
Pop: 177
Type: H

Notes: parish only draft

Nettledon (aka Nettlesdon) 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 142
Type: I

Olney 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 2,339
Type: H

Princes Risborough 1821

Location: CBS PR175/28/3,4 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,958 Type: H Princes Risborough 1831

Location: CBS PR175/28/3,4 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,122 Type: H

Ravenstone 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 370
Type: H

Stoke Poges 1831

Location: Bodleian MS Top. Buck e1; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson Pop: 1,252 Type: I

Size: All firstnames: Χ Χ Head's surname: Χ Ages: All surnames: χ Sex: Marital Status: Η Wife: Χ Kin: Son/Daughter: Χ Servants: Children: Χ All Relationships: Lodgers: Н Est. Households: 205 Occupations:

Head's firstname: X

Notes: List independent of census records labourers and craftsmen only.

Names children away from parental home in service or married.

Annual rent, number of sleeping rooms

Wooburn (aka Woburn) 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,401
Type: H

CAMBRIDGESHIRE

Balsham 1811

Location: CamRO P7/18/4 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 759

Type: H

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Cambridge, St. Benedict

1821

CamRO; copy in CAMPOP Library Location:

Source: Chapman

Pop: 967 Н Type:

Head's firstname: Size: Χ Χ All firstnames: Ages: Sex: Χ Head's surname: Χ Marital Status: All surnames: Kin· Wife: Servants: Son/Daughter: Children: Lodgers: Occupations: All Relationships: No

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Cambridge, St. Edward

1801

CamRO P28/18/17 Location: Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 665

Type:

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Cambridge, St. Edward

1811

Location: CamRO P28/18/18 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 666 Type:

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Cambridge, St. Edward

1821

Location: CamRO P28/18/19 Source: Chapman Pop: 810

Type: Н

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Cambridge, St. Mary the Great

1811

Location: CamRO P30/18/9 Gibson/Chapman Source:

Pop: 824

Type:

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Cambridge, St. Mary the Great

1801

Location: CamRO P30/18/8 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 761 Type: H

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Downham 1821

Location: CamRO P57/19/14
Source: See below
Pop: 1,350
Type: H

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Duxford 1821

Location: CamRO photocopy in R91/9; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: -Pop: 605 Type: H

All firstnames: Size: Χ Χ Head's surname: Ages: X Sex: All surnames: Marital Status: Wife: Son/Daughter: Kin: Children: Servants: All Relationships: Lodgers: No Occupations: HM% Population: 605 Head's firstname:

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Ely, St. Mary

Location: CamRO P68/18/4 Source: Chapman Pop: 1,117 Type: H

Notes: Pop. Count includes Chettisham

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Ely, St. Mary 1811

Location: CamRO R81/36 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,292 Type: H

Notes: Pop. Count includes Chettisham

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Girton 1801

Location: CamRO P77/1/2 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 232 Type: H

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Little Wilbraham 1801

Location: CamRO P175/25/1 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 183

Type: H

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Melbourn 1831

Location: CamRO photocopy in R91/35; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,474 Type: H

All firstnames: Size: Х Head's surname: X All Ages: Sex: Χ surnames: Marital Status: Wife: Kin: Son/Daughter: Χ Children: Servants: - All Relationships: Lodgers: No

Occupations: H Population: 1474
Head's firstname: - Est. Households: 290

Notes: Families per house; males aged 20+, female servants and male

servants under and over 20

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Parson Drove 1821

Location: N/K Source: See below

Type: ?

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

Trumpington 1811

Location: CamRO P158/3/4 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 508 Type: H

Publications: Cambridgeshire FHS, A Collection of Early Census Listings [Microfiche]

CHESHIRE

Marbury 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 20
Type: H

Nether Alderley 1811

Location: ChsRO P143/13/15, 16, 17; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 541 Type: I

Size: Χ All firstnames: Χ Head's surname: Ages: Χ Sex: Χ All surnames: χ Marital Status: HF Wife: Χ Kin: Χ Son/Daughter: Servants: Χ Children: Х % Lodgers: All Relationships: Χ Occupations: HM Population: 552 Head's firstname: Est. Households:

Notes: Number of males and females per household in agriculture, trade

and other employment; Listed in Chapman as Alderley

Nether Alderley 1821

Location: ChsRO P143/13/15, 16, 17; Copy in CAMPOP Library Source: Chapman

Pop: Chapm. Fop: 668
Type: I

Size: All firstnames: Χ Χ Χ Head's surname: Ages: Χ Sex: Χ All surnames: Χ Marital Status: Wife: Son/Daughter: Kin· Servants: Children: Lodgers: All Relationships: Occupations: Population: 668 Head's firstname: Est. Households: 171

Notes: Listed in Chapman as Alderley

Location: ChsRO P143/13/15, 16, 17; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Pop: 587
Type: I

Head's surname: Χ Size: Χ Ages: Χ All surnames: Χ Sex: Χ Wife: Marital Status: Son/Daughter: Kin· Children: Servants: All Relationships: No Population: 402 Lodgers: Occupations:

Head's firstname: X Est. Households: 72
All firstnames: X

Notes: Copy at Cambridge Group incomplete judged from summary of

population; Listed in Chapman as Alderley

Over Alderley 1811

Location: ChsRO P143/13/15, 16, 17; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: -Pop: 424 Type: I

Size: Χ All firstnames: Χ Head's surname: Χ Ages: Sex: Χ All surnames: Χ % Marital Status: HF Wife: Kin· Χ Son/Daughter: % Χ Children: % Servants: % All Relationships: Lodgers: No Occupations: Η 761 Population: Est. Households: Head's firstname: 143

Notes: Number of males and females per household in agriculture, trade and

other employment recorded f 34–53 but not recorded for f 54–74;

Listed in Chapman as Alderley

Rostherne (aka Rosthern)

1821

Location: ChsRO; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Chapman

Pop: 373 Type: I

All firstnames: Size: Χ % Head's surname: X All Ages: Sex: surnames: % Marital Status: Χ Wife: Kin· Χ Son/Daughter: χ Χ Servants: Children: - All

Lodgers: - Relationships: X

Occupations: H Head's firstname: X

Notes: Names and ages of 30 servants, 1 household and 50 pupil boarders

Population:

3052

omitted.

Stockport 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 25,469
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Tattenhall 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 917
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Warburton 1831

Location: Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Chapman Pop: 510 Type: H

Size: All firstnames: Head's surname: Χ Ages: Sex: All surnames: Marital Status: H% Wife: % Kin: Son/Daughter: Servants: Lodgers: Children: All Relationships: Est. Occupations: No Head's firstname: H% Households: 94

X

Notes: Religious denomination. Number of children in Sunday School

(incomplete). Another version of the list contains some ages and later

births. Lists are independent of the census and vary in detail.

Winwick (aka Winwick with Hulme)

1801

Location: ChsRO P158/7/8 in North Cheshire; Copies at CAMPOP Library; and

Warrington Lib (WP 80311)

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 573 Type: I

Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Ages: Χ Occupations: HM Χ Head's firstname: Sex: Х All firstnames: Marital Status: Χ Head's surname: Kin: Χ Χ Servants: All surnames: χ

Notes: See: Family Historian, 5 (1978), 8–15 and correspondence in Local

Population Studies, 27 (1981), 86-7.

CORNWALL

Bodmin 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 3,278
Type: H

Boyton 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 406
Type: I

Poundstock 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 635
Type: H

St. Hilary 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 990
Type: H

Veryan 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,421
Type: I

Web: http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.com/~dtrounce/1821veryan_1-

89.html [09/03/2004]

CUMBERLAND

Holme Cultram 1821

N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 2.772 Type: Н

Notes: Part parish only; pop count includes: Abbey (758), East-Waver (502),

Low (811), St. Cuthbert's (701)

Isel (aka Isall) 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 378 Type:

Notes: Pop count includes: Blindcrake, Isall and Redmain (233), Isall, Old

Park (84), and Sunderland (61)

Newton Reigny (aka Newton Rigny)

1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 126 Type: Η

Notes: Part parish only

Skelton 1821

Location: N/K Chapman Source: 332 Pop:

Η Туре:

Notes: Part parish only

DERBYSHIRE

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 4,476 Η Туре:

Notes: Part parish only

1801 Clowne (aka Clown)

Location: DerRO D1296A/PI 1/3 and Mf. Copy XMI/49/9

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 484 Ι Type:

Crich 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman 1,828 Pop: Η Туре:

Crich 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 2,024

Type: Η

Notes: Part parish only

1821 Doveridge

N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 843 Туре: Η

Eckington 1801

Location: N/K Source: Chapman 2,694 Pop: Η Type:

1821 Eckington

N/K Location: Source: Chapman 1.013 Pop: Ĥ Туре:

1811 Findern (aka Finderon)

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 339 Type:

Hope Valley (aka Hope) 1811

Location: N/K

Source: Chapman/See below

Pop: 440 Η Type:

Web: http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.com/~dusk/1811_hope/

1811_hope.html [09/03/2004]

Littleover 1811

Location: DerRO D2728A/P1 12D; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 352 Type: I

All firstnames: Size: Χ X C Head's surname: Χ Ages: Sex: All surnames: Χ Marital Status: Wife: Χ Kin: Χ Son/Daughter: Χ Χ Servants: Children: χ All Relationships: Lodgers: Occupations: Η Population: 347 Head's firstname: Est. Households:

Notes: Cambridge Group holds transcripts only.

Mackworth

Occupations:

Location: Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: -Pop: 392 Type: I

Size:-Head's firstname:Ages:XAll firstnames:Sex:-Head's surname:Marital Status:-All surnames:Kin:-Wife:Servants:-Son/Daughter:Lodgers:-Children: All

Χ

Χ

No

Relationships:

Notes: Boundaries between households not specified.

Mickleover 1811

Location: DerRO D2728A/P1 12D; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: Type: 587

All firstnames: Size: Χ X Ages: C% Head's surname: Χ Sex: All surnames: Χ Marital Status: Η Wife: Χ Kin: Х Son/Daughter: Χ Χ Servants: Children: Χ Lodgers: Χ All Relationships: Η Occupations: Population: 582 Head's firstname: Est. Households: 113

Notes: Cambridge Group holds transcript only.

Mickleover 1821

Location: Copy in CAMPOP Library.

Source: Chapman

Pop: 631 Type: I

Size: All firstnames: Χ Ages: Head's surname: Χ C Sex: All surnames: Marital Status: H% Wife: Χ Kin: Χ Son/Daughter: Χ Χ Servants: Children:

Servants: X Children: X
Lodgers: X All Relationships: X
Occupations: H Population: 634
Head's firstname: X% Est. Households: 116

Notes: Transcript only at Cambridge Group.

Morley 1801

Location: Copy in CAMPOP Library.

Source: Pop: 256
Type: H

Size: Χ All firstnames: Ages: Head's surname: Χ All surnames: Sex: Marital Status: Η Wife: Χ Kin: Son/Daughter: Servants: Children: All Lodgers: Relationships: No Occupations: Η Population: 256 Head's firstname: Est. Households: 47

Morley 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 239
Type: H

Ockbrook 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,203
Type: H

Smalley 1801

Location: DerRO D784A/PI 1/7 and D784A/PO 1/1 and Mf. Copy XMI/334/10;

Copy in CAMPOP Library,

Source: Gibson/Chapman

X%

Pop: 618 Type: H

Head's firstname:

Size: Χ All firstnames: Ages: Head's surname: Х Χ All surnames: Sex: Marital Status: HF Wife: Χ Kin: Х Son/Daughter: Servants: Χ Children: All Χ Lodgers: Χ Relationships: Χ Occupations: Population: 512

South Normanton 1821

Est. Households:

112

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,056
Type: H

Stanton by Bridge 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 170
Type: H

Stanton by Bridge 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 190
Type: H

Stanton by Bridge 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 167
Type: H

Ticknall 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,274
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Whittington 1831

Location: Copy in CAMPOP Library

Χ

Source: -Pop: 740 Type: I

Size: All firstnames: Χ Χ Ages: Χ Head's surname: Χ Sex: Χ All surnames: Χ Marital Status: H% Wife: Χ Kin: Χ Son/Daughter: Χ Χ Servants: Children: Lodgers: All Relationships: No Occupations: Population: 744

Notes: Additions indicate later deaths and out-migration.

DEVON

Head's firstname:

Axminster 1821

Est. Households:

138

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 2,742
Type: H

Bickleigh 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 297
Type: H

Bickleigh 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 730
Type: H

Cheriton Bishop 1821

Location: N/K
Source: See below
Pop: 753
Type: H

Web: http://www.cs.ncl.ac.uk/genuki/DEV/CheritonBishop/

CheritonBishop1821.html [09/03/2004]

Clyst, St. George (aka Clist, St. George)

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 345

Type:

Combe Martin (aka Comb-Marten)

1831

1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 1,031 Ι Type:

Dean Prior

1821

Location: N/K

Source: Chapman/See below

Pop: Η Type:

Web: http://www.cs.ncl.ac.uk/genuki/DEV/DeanPrior/DeanPrior1821.html

[09/03/2004]

Doddiscombsleigh

1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 326 Ι Type:

Dunsford

1811

Location: N/K Source: See below 819 Pop:

Type:

Notes: Not in Chapman

Web: http://www.cs.ncl.ac.uk/genuki/DEV/Dunsford/Dunsford1821.html

[09/03/04]

Exeter Holy Trinity

1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 2,377 Type: Н

Fremington

1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 1,099 Η Туре:

Morthoe 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 254
Type: H

Rewe 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 188
Type: H

DORSET

Allington 1831

Location: DorRO PE/ALL: OV 4/1

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,300 Type: H

Web: http://www.dorset-opc.com/1831Allington.htm [09/03/2004]

Broadwinsor 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,387
Type: H

Compton Abbas 1821

Location: DorRO PE/COA/OV 2; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 368 Type: H

Size: All firstnames: Χ Χ Head's surname: Ages: Х Sex: X All surnames: Marital Status: Wife: Son/Daughter: Kin: Servants: Children: Lodgers: All Relationships: No Occupations: Population: 368 Head's firstname: Est. Households:

Corfe Castle 1811

Location: DorRO D/MOW/Z 6 and Photocopy 801/1

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 744 Type: I

Notes: Gibson suggests this is in CAMPOP Library, but not extracted here.

Corfe Castle 1821

Location: DorRO D/MOW/Z 6 and Photocopy 801/2,3

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 823 T Type:

Notes: Gibson suggests this is in CAMPOP Library, but not extracted here.

Corfe Castle 1831

Location: DorRO D/MOW/Z 6 and Photocopy 801/2,3

Source: Gibson/Chapman 960

Pop:

Type:

Notes: Gibson suggests this is in CAMPOP Library, but not extracted here.

Horton 1821

Location: DorRO PE/HOR/OV 1; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson Pop: 420 Ι Type:

Size: Χ All firstnames: Χ Ages: Χ Head's surname: All surnames: Χ Sex: Marital Status: HF Wife: Kin: Son/Daughter: Servants: Χ Children: Lodgers: All Relationships: No Η Occupations: Population: 420 Head's firstname: Est. Households: 77

Boundaries between households uncertain. Notes:

Litton Cheney 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 424 Type: Η

Marnhull 1821

Location: DorRO PE/MAL/OV 5; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,273 Type: H

Occupations:

Head's firstname:

Size: All firstnames: Χ Ages: Χ Head's surname: X All Sex: Χ surnames: Marital Status: HF Wife: Kin: Son/Daughter: Servants: Children: - All Lodgers: Relationships: No

Notes: Religious denomination

Η

Web: http://www.dorset-opc.com/1821Marnhull.htm [09/03/2004]

Melbury Osmond 1801

Population:

Est. Households:

1273

240

Location: Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: -Pop: 335 Type: I

Size: Χ All firstnames: Χ Head's surname: Χ Ages: Sex: Χ All surnames: Χ Χ Marital Status: Χ Wife: Kin: Son/Daughter: Χ Servants: Children: Χ Lodgers: All Relationships: No Occupations: Χ Population: 334 Head's firstname: Est. Households: 65

Notes: Chapman gives date as 1800.

Oborne 1801

Location: DorRO PE/OBN/RE 1/1. Copy (transcript) in CAMPOP Library.

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 132 Type: I

All firstnames: Χ Size: Χ Head's surname: Χ Ages: Sex: Χ All surnames: Χ Marital Status: Χ Χ Wife: Kin· Son/Daughter: Χ Χ Servants: Children: All Relationships: No Lodgers: Η Occupations: Population: 131 Head's firstname: Est. Households: 26

Notes: Transcript only at Cambridge Group.

Web: http://www.melcombe.freeserve.co.uk/dorset/oborne1801.htm

[09/03/2004]

Publications: Somerset and Dorset Notes and Queries, 15, (1916–17), 101–104.

Ryme Intrinseca (aka Ryme-Intrinsica)

1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 171
Type: H

Shaftesbury [St. James]

1821

Location: DorRO PE/SY(SJ)/OV 1; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 436

Type: H
Size: X

All firstnames: Χ Ages: Head's surname: Χ Sex: Χ All surnames: Marital Status: Wife: Kin· Son/Daughter: Children: Servants: Lodgers: All Relationships: No Occupations: Η 604 Population:

Head's firstname: X

Notes: Families per house

Sturminster Newton (aka Sturminster-Newton-Castle)

1801

Location: DorRO PE/SN/OV 1/2; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Gibson/Chapman Source:

Pop: 1,406

Type:

Size: Χ All firstnames: X Ages: Head's surname: X All Χ Sex: surnames: Х Marital Status: Χ Wife: Χ Kin· Son/Daughter: Χ X All Servants: Children: Lodgers: Relationships: No Χ Occupations: Population: 1406 Head's firstname: Est. Households: 308

Thornford 1821

Location: DorRO PC/TFD/5/18; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 329 Type: Ι

Size: χ All firstnames: Χ Ages: Χ Head's surname: Χ Χ Sex: All surnames: Marital Status: Wife: Kin: Son/Daughter: Χ Servants: Children: Χ All Relationships: No Lodgers: 329

Occupations: HM Population: Head's firstname:

Whitchurch Canonicorum

1811

Location: DorRO PE/WWC/OV86

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,065 Η Type:

Winterbourne [St. Martin]

1801

Copy in CAMPOP Library Location:

Source: Chapman

Pop: 262 Η Type:

All firstnames: Size: Χ Head's surname: Χ Ages: Sex: Χ All surnames: Marital Status: Wife: Kin· Son/Daughter: Servants: Children: All Relationships: No Lodgers: Occupations: Η Population: 262

Head's firstname:

Winterbourne Whitechurch (aka Winterborne-Whitechurch)

1821

Location: Original not known; copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Chapman 493 Pop: Type: Η

Size: Χ All firstnames: Head's surname: Χ Ages: χ Sex: All surnames: Marital Status: H% Wife: Χ Son/Daughter: Kin: χ Children: χ Servants: Χ All Relationships: No Lodgers: Occupations: Population: 493 Est. Households: Head's firstname:

Notes: Transcript only at Cambridge Group.

Woodlands 1821

DorRO PE/HOR/MI3; Copy in CAMPOP Library Location:

Source: Gibson Pop: 395 Ι Type:

Size: Χ All firstnames: Χ Head's surname: Ages: Sex: Χ All surnames: Χ Marital Status: Wife: Kin: Χ Son/Daughter: Χ Servants: Children: Lodgers: All Relationships: No Occupations: HM Population:

395 Head's firstname: Est. Households: 63

DURHAM

Darlington 1831

Location: DurRO D/XD/16/34

Source: Pop:

8,574 H

Type: H
Notes: Not in Chapman; pop count covers Darlington with Oxenhall, or

Oxneyfield

Durham, St. Oswald

1821

Location: DurRO EP/Du.So 110, 111/1, 111/2

Η

Source: Chapman Pop: 5,598

Type:

Notes: Part parish only; pop count covers Crossgate (1,454), Elvet (1,720) and

Elvet (901), Framwellgate (1,523)

ESSEX

Ardleigh 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 263/28/1 D/P 263/28/1; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,387 Type: H

Χ Lodgers: Size: Occupations: Ages: Х H Head's firstname: Sex: Χ % Marital Status: HF All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Ardleigh 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 263/28/1. Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson Pop: 1,186 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Occupations: H% Ages: Χ Head's firstname: Sex: % Marital Status: HF All firstnames: Head's surname: Kin: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Ashdon 1801

Location: EssRO D/P 18/18/5

Source: Chapman Pop: 710

Pop: 71 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Ashdon 1831

Location: EssRO D/P 18/18/6

Source: See below Pop: 898 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Beaumont cum Moze (aka Beaumont-with-Moze) 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 285/18/2

Source: See below Pop: 434 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1791–1831 [Microfiche]

Bradwell juxta Mare (aka Bradwell-near-the-Sea) 1831

Location: EssRO D/P 51/18/6

 Source:

 Pop:
 956

 Type:
 H

 Notes:
 No names

Bradwell juxta Mare (aka Bradwell-near-the-Sea) 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 51/18/5

Source: See below Pop: 795
Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, *Parish*

Braintree 1821

Location: EssRO D/DU 65/83; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson Pop: 2,983 Type: I

Χ Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Occupations: H% Ages: Sex: % Head's firstname: Х Marital Status: H% All firstnames: Kin· Χ Head's surname: Χ χ Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Place of settlement. A second version of the list shows in summary

form per household, families employed in agriculture, trade and otherwise; number of males and females in age groups. Contains

2,983 people [Gibson].

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Brightlingsea 1831

Location: N/K
Source: See below
Pop: 1,784
Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Brightlingsea 1811

Location: EssRO D/DEI/04
Source: See below
Pop: 1,020
Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Clacton, Great, St. John the Baptist 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 179/18/10

Source: See below Pop: 868 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Colchester, St. Leonard

1811

Location: EssRO D/P 245/18/18

Source: See below Pop: 830

Type: 83

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Colchester, St. Leonard

1821

Location: EssRO D/P 245/18/19

Source: Chapman
Pop: 844
Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Debden 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 242/18/5; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson Pop: 781 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Ages: Occupations: Χ Head's firstname: Sex: M Marital Status: HF All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Debden 1801

Location: EssRO D/P 242/18/3; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 781 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Ages: Occupations: χ Head's firstname: Sex: X Marital Status: Η All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: Servants: Χ All surnames:

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Earl's Colne 1831

Location: EssRO T/P 474/1 [transcript only]

Source: See below Pop: 1,319 Type: ?

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings (Supplement), 1695–1840 [Microfiche]

Elmstead 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 168/18/8

Source: See below Pop: 654 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Finchingfield 1831

Location: EssRO D/P 14/18/16; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,101 Type: I

Lodgers: Size: C HM Ages: Occupations: Head's firstname: Sex: M Marital Status: Η All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Finchingfield 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 14/18/15; Copy in CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,007 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Ages: Occupations: H Χ Head's firstname: Χ Sex: Marital Status: All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: X Servants: All surnames:

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Gestingthorpe 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 85/18/7

Source: See below Pop: 532 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Gestingthorpe 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 85/18/1

Source: Pop: 694
Type: ?

Notes: Draft return only

Great Parndon 1811

Location: N/K Source: See below

Pop: 347 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Hatfield Broad Oak 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 4/18/2 Source: See below Pop: 1,321

Pop: 1,321 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Horndon-on-the-Hill 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 56/18/1; Copy at CAMPOP.

Source: Gibson Pop: 378 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Ages: Occupations: H Χ Head's firstname: Sex: All firstnames: Marital Status: Kin: Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Horndon-on-the-Hill 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 56/18/2; Copy at CAMPOP.

Source: Gibson
Pop: 420
Type: H

Χ Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Occupations: Ages: Sex: Χ Head's firstname: Μ Marital Status: Η All firstnames: Kin· Head's surname: χ Χ Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Copy at Cambridge Group incomplete. Information on servants and

lodgers on final incomplete pages of list

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Ingatestone 1831

Location: EssRO D/DU 407/1; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 789

Type: I

Size: Χ Lodgers: Ages: % Occupations: Head's firstname: Sex: Marital Status: HF% All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: Χ Χ Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Ages given in form under and over 20; Married men and widowers

heading households identified; taken 2nd May 1831, but related to

1831 census.

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Leyton (aka Leyton, Low) 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 3,162
Type: H

Leyton (aka Leyton, Low)

1821

Location: Vestry House Museum, Walthamstow L31. 1/1, 2,3 and Mf. copies

and indexes

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 3,374 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Leyton (aka Leyton, Low)

1831

Location: Vestry House Museum, Walthamstow L31. 1/1, 2, 3 and Mf. copies

and indexes

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 3,323 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Little Baddow 1801

Location: EssRO D/P 35/18/2

Source: Chapman Pop: 456 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Little Baddow 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 35/18/3

Source: See below Pop: 381 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Little Baddow 1831

Location: EssRO D/P 35/7/5 Source: See below

Pop: 366 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Little Bentley 1831

Location: N/K
Source: See below
Pop: 438
Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Middleton 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 394/18 Source: Chapman Pop: 90 Type: H

Notes: Contains similar information for 1815.

Mistley 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 343/18/1; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 778 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Occupations: Η Ages: Χ Sex: Head's firstname: M Marital Status: HF All firstnames: Head's surname: Χ Kin: Servants: All surnames:

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Mundon 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 238/18/6 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 281 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, *Parish*

Mundon 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 238/18/6; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: -Pop: 309 Type: H

Servants:

Size: X Lodgers: Ages: % Occupations: H
Sex: X Head's firstname: Marital Status: - All firstnames: Kin: - Head's surname: -

Notes: Number per household of male and female children under 14. [Date

All surnames:

1801

uncertain: 1821?]

Mundon 1831

Location: EssRO D/P 238/18/6; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 273 Type: H

Χ Size: Lodgers: Η Ages: Occupations: % Sex: Head's firstname: M% Marital Status: All firstnames: Head's surname: Χ Kin: All surnames: Servants:

Notes: Occupational groups for males aged 20+

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, *Parish*

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Norton Mandeville (aka Norton Mandiwell)

Location: EssRO D/P 267/1/1

Source: Chapman

Pop: 93 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Paglesham 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 254/1/3

Source: Pop: 396
Type: ?

Notes: Bound with parish register

Paglesham 1831

1801

Location: EssRO D/P 254/1/3

Source: Pop: 450
Type: ?

Notes: Bound with parish register

Rainham (aka Raine)

Location: N/K
Source: See below
Pop: 444
Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Rainham (aka Raine) 1811

Location: N/K
Source: See below
Pop: 490
Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Rochford 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 129/18/12

Source: See below Pop: 1,214 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

St. Lawrence 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 361/18/1

Source: See below Pop: 200 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Saffron Walden 1811

Location: N/K
Source: See below
Pop: 3,403
Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Sandon 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 253/18/15

Source: -Pop: 348 Type: H

Notes: Includes basic returns for 1801 and has signed tally sheet for 1831

(with no names).

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Stansted Mountfitchet (aka Stanstead-Mountfichet)

1811

Location: EssRO D/P 109/18/6

Source: Pop: 870
Type: ?

Notes: Preprinted form. Not included in ERO/ESFH indices or transcripts.

Steeple Bumpstead (aka Steeple) 1831

Location: EssRO D/P 21/18/27; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 497 Type: I

Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Ages: % Occupations: H Χ Head's firstname: Χ Sex: Χ Marital Status: All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: Χ Χ Χ Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Males aged 20+; female servants; male servants aged under 20 and

20+.

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Terling 1801

Location: EssRO D/P 299/12/4

Source: Chapman Pop: 708 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Terling 1811

Location: N/K
Source: See below
Pop: 766
Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Thorrington 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 293/18/1

Source: See below Pop: 306 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Tilbury juxta Clare 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 164/18/17

Source: See below Pop: 167 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Tilbury juxta Clare 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 164/18/17

Source: See below Pop: 213 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Tilbury juxta Clare

1831

Location: EssRO D/P 164/18/17

Source: See below Pop: 236

Type: I

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Tolleshunt Major

1821

Location: EssRO D/P 240/18/3

Source: See below Pop: 422 Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Tolleshunt Major (part)

1831

1801

Location: EssRO D/P 240/18/4

Source: Chapman

Pop: 428 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Toppesfield

Location: EssRO D/P 163/1/3

Source: Chapman
Pop: 685
Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings (Supplement), 1695–1840 [Microfiche]

Toppesfield 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 163/18/1

Source: See below Pop: 712 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, *Parish*

Upminster 1831

Location: EssRO D/P 117/18/6

Source: See below Pop: 1,033 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, *Parish*

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Walthamstow 1811

Location: Vestry House Museum Walthamstow VHM W31. 1/1, 2,3 and Mf.

copies and indexes Gibson/Chapman

Source: Gibson/Cl Pop: 3,777

Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Walthamstow 1821

Location: Vestry House Museum Walthamstow VHM W31. 1/1, 2,3 and Mf.

copies and indexes Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 4,304 Type: H

Source:

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Walthamstow 1831

Location: Vestry House Museum Walthamstow VHM L31. 1/1, 2,3 and Mf.

copies and indexes Gibson/Chapman

Source: Gibson/C

Pop: 4,258 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Wanstead 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 292/18/5

Source: See below Pop: 1,354 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Wickford 1811

Location: N/K
Source: See below
Pop: 296
Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Witham 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 30/18/6

Source: See below Pop: 2,352 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Woodham Walter 1811

Location: EssRO D/P 101/18/2

Source: See below Pop: 400

Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Woodham Walter 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 101/18/3

Source: See below Pop: 454

Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Woodham Walter 1831

Location: EssRO D/P 101/18/4

Source: See below Pop: 538
Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, *Parish*

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Wormingford 1831

Location: EssRO D/P 185/18/3

Source: See below Pop: 543 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, *Parish*

Census Listings, 1797–1831 [Microfiche]

Writtle 1821

Location: EssRO D/P 50/18/10 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,100 Type: H

Publications: Essex Record Office and Essex Society for Family History, Parish

GLOUCESTERSHIRE

Aust 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman

Type: H

Barnsley 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 318
Type: I

Bisley 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 5,421
Type: H

Bisley 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 5,896
Type: H

Bristol, St. Michael on the Mount Without 1821

Location: BriRO P.St M/V/3/b-d

Source: -Type: ?

Bitton 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,788
Type: H

Bitton 1831

Location: BriRO P.B/I/9a. Also copy at: LDS film/658/10.

Source: Chapman Pop: 2,258 Type: H Bristol, Bedminster 1821

Location: BriRO P.AL/R/3/a

Source: - Type: ?

Notes: The Bristol Record Office web site mentions: BriRO P.AL/R/3/a as the

location for an 1821 census of Bedminster. It is not clear whether this

relates to statistical returns or a household listing.

Bristol, St. Augustine the Less

1801

Location: BriRO P.St Aug/ChW/3/a

Source: Chapman Pop: 5,377 Type: H

Bristol, St. Augustine the Less

1811

Location: BriRO P.St Aug/ChW/3/b

Source: Chapman Pop: 6,495 Type: H

Bristol, St. Augustine the Less

1821

Location: BriRO P.St Aug/ChW/3/c

Source: Chapman Pop: 7,321 Type: H

Great Badminton

1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 464
Type: H

Great Badminton

1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 409
Type: H

Great Badminton

1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 423
Type: H

Hawkesbury 1801 Location: N/K Chapman Source: 335 Pop: Type: Η 1811 Horseley (aka Horsley) N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 2,925 Type: Η Mickelton 1821 Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 574 Type: Η Mickleton 1811 Location: N/K Chapman Source: 475 Pop: Type: Η Naunton 1811 N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 430 Type: Η Olveston 1801 Location: N/K Source: Chapman 899 Pop: Type: Notes: Ι Pop count includes Upper Tockington Rendcombe 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 163
Type: H

Stratton 1821 Location: N/K Chapman Source: 271 Pop: Η Type: Stroud 1821 Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 7,097 Type: Η Tortworth 1811 Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 303 Type: Η Tortworth 1801 Location: N/K Source: Chapman 269 Pop: Type: Η Woolaston (aka Woolastone) 1821 Location: N/K Chapman Source: Pop: 884 Type: Η HAMPSHIRE 1831 Baughurst Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 491 Η Type: Calbourne (aka Calbourn) 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 690
Type: H

East Tisted 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 278

Type:

Notes: Pop count includes Rotherfield

Exton 1801

Location: HamRO P86M71/PR 3. Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: Η Type:

Size: Χ Lodgers: Η Ages: Occupations: Χ Head's firstname: Sex: Marital Status: All firstnames: Head's surname: Kin: Х Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Transcript only at Cambridge Group. The HamRO call mark also

includes notes on census, 1801, 1811, 1821, 1831. These have not been seen. Another copy may have been located at Herriard HamRO

44M69/J 9/79.

Fawley 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 1.521 Η Type:

Fawley 1821

N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 1.684 Η Туре:

Fawley 1831

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 1.839 Н Type:

Fordingbridge 1801

Location: HamRO 24M82/PO 20 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,335 Η Type:

Fordingbridge 1811

Location: HamRO 24M82/PO 20 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,259 Type: H

Fordingbridge 1821

Location: HamRO 24M82/PO 20 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,444 Type: H

Fordingbridge 1831

Location: HamRO 24M82/PO 20 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,611 Type: H

Headley 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,093
Type: H

Kings Worthy 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 175
Type: H

Lymington 1801

Location: HamRO 42M75/PZ 10a, b Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,378 Type: H

Lymington 1811

Location: HamRO 42M75/PZ 10a, b

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,641 Type: H Newchurch 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 3,945
Type: H

Notes: Copy; part parish only

Rotherwick 1811

Location: HamRO 12M94
Source: Chapman
Pop: 400
Type: H

Ryde 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Type: H

Wherwell 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 622
Type: H

Notes: Pop count includes Westover

Winchester, St. Bartholomew 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 730
Type: I

Winchester, St. Peter Chesil (aka St. Peter Cheesehill) 1821

Location: HamRO 3M 82W/PO7

Source: Chapman Pop: 581 Type: H

Notes: Part parish only; possibly 1811; Pop. (1811): 500

HEREFORDSHIRE

Lucton 1811

Location: HerROAC80/3 Source: Chapman Pop: 168 Type: H

Notes: Surnames only

Stoke Edith 1801

Location: HerROAE55/2 Source: Chapman Pop: 258 Type: H

HERTFORDSHIRE

Barkway and Reed 1801

Location: HertRO D/P 13 3/4 and 13 29/4; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Chapman

Pop: 715 Type: I

Size: Χ Lodgers: Ages: C Occupations: Η Sex: Head's firstname: Х Marital Status: H% All firstnames: Χ Kin· Head's surname: Х Χ Χ Χ Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Religious denomination if dissenters; 1801 omits servants' names.

Pop count includes Barkway (699) and Reed (164)

Digswell 1821

Location: HertRO D/P 34 29/3; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson Pop: 204 Type: I

Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Χ Occupations: Η Ages: Χ Head's firstname: Sex: Х Marital Status: Н% All firstnames: Χ Kin: Χ Head's surname: Χ Servants: Χ All surnames: Χ

Notes: No widows among 37 household heads

Hitchen 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 4,486
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Hitchin 1801

Location: HertRO 67578, 67580; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson
Pop: 3,161
Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Occupations: Η Ages: Χ Head's firstname: Sex: Marital Status: HF All firstnames: Head's surname: Χ Kin: Servants: All surnames:

HUNTINGDONSHIRE

Alwalton 1811

Location: HunRO 2716/11/1B

Source: Chapman Pop: 216 Type: H

Web: http://www.pjsfh.btinternet.co.uk/Alwalton1811.htm [09/03/2004]

Alwalton 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 257
Type: H

Bluntisham 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 635
Type: H

Godmanchester 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,953
Type: H

KENT

Beckenham 1821

Location: Bromley Central Lib 641, index published

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,180 Type: H

Publications: 'The 1821 Census of Beckenham', North West Kent FHS Journal, 1 (6)

(1980). Contains an index to this census

Borden 1801

Location: CKS P35/28/1, 2 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 528 Type: H

Borden 1811

Location: CKS P35/28/1, 2 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 572 Type: H

Bromley 1801

Location: Bromley Central Lib 646 index

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,700 Type: H

Publications: 'The 1801 Census of Bromley', North West Kent FHS Journal, 1 (5)

(1980). Contains an index to this census

Canterbury 1811

Location: CCA
Source: Chapman
Pop: 9,717
Type: H

Notes: Only part; pop count includes all fifteen parishes.

Dartford 1801

Location: Medway Archives

Source: Wright Pop: 2,498 Type: ?

Dartford 1821

Location: Medway Archives

Source: Wright Pop: 2,498 Type: ?

Deal 1801

Location: Deal Library
Source: Chapman
Pop: 5,420
Type: H

Publications: Published index on Kent FHS microfiche [fiche #1681].

Deal 1811

Location: Deal Library
Source: Chapman
Pop: 7,351
Type: H

Publications: Published index on Kent FHS microfiche

Deal 1821

Location: Deal Library
Source: Chapman
Pop: 6,811
Type: H

Publications: Published index on Kent FHS microfiche

Eastry 1801

Location: CCA
Source: Chapman
Pop: 852
Type: H

Folkestone 1801

Location: Folkestone Central Lib FAO Fo/AZ 1/1, 2 (88)

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 447 Type: H

Goudhurst 1811

Location: CKS P157/18/1 with transcript

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,082 Type: H

Hayes 1821

Location: N/K
Source: See below
Pop: 429
Type: H

Web: http://freepages.genealogy.rootsweb.com/~mrawson/1821indx.html

[09/03/2004]

Horsmonden (aka Horsemorden) 1831

Location: CKS Source: Chapman 1,197 Pop: Ĥ Туре:

Lower Hardres 1811

Location: CCA P171/18/2 Source: Chapman

202 Pop: Η Type:

Web: http://members.lycos.co.uk/elmsted/census/lhardres1811.htm

[09/03/2004]

Luddesdown 1811

Location: CKS P235/28/4 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 176 Type: Η

Maidstone 1811

Location: **CKS** Source: Chapman 9,443 Pop: Type: Notes: Η

Part parish only

Penshurst 1821

Location: CKS Chapman Source: 1,392 Pop: Type: Η

1811 Preston

CCA Location: Source: Wright Type:

Ringwold (aka Ringswould) 1831

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 566 Η

Type:

Rochester, St. Nicholas

1811

Location: Medway Archives

Source: Wright

Type: ?

Rochester, St. Nicholas 1821

Location: Medway Archives Source: Chapman

Pop: 3,294 Type: H

Sellindge (aka Sellinge) 1831

Location: CKS
Source: Chapman
Pop: 451
Type: H

Shadoxhurst 1831

Location: KAS, Maidstone Source: Chapman

Pop: 239 Type: H

Smarden (aka Snarden) 1801

Location: CKS
Source: Chapman
Pop: 831
Type: H

Smarden (aka Snarden) 1811

Location: CKS P339/18/2, 3 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 890 Type: H

Smarden (aka Snarden) 1831

Location: CKS Source: Wright Type: H

Tenterden 1801

Location: CKS Source: Wright Type: H Tenterden 1811

Location: CKS Source: Wright Type: H

Tenterden 1831

Location: CKS P365/18/18 Source: Chapman Pop: 3,177 Type: H

Thanington 1821

Location: CCA
Source: Chapman
Pop: 374
Type: H

West Malling 1801

Location: CKS P243/28/1 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,093 Type: H

LANCASHIRE

Ashton-under-Lyne 1811

Location: LanRO PR 2583 (3,042); Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson Pop: 19,052 Type: H

Χ Size: Х Lodgers: Χ Occupations: Η Ages: Head's firstname: Sex: M Marital Status: HF All firstnames: Kin: Χ Head's surname: Χ Χ Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Owner-occupiers and tenants for part of list. Copy at Cambridge

Group is incomplete. Census includes Stalybridge, Heyrod, Mossley

and part Leizley townships

Broughton 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,253
Type: H

Bury 1801

Location: LanRO CBB/9, published

Source: Chapman Pop: 7,072 Type: H

Notes: Includes Elton township only.

Croston 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,211
Type: H

Eccleston 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 727
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Edgeworth 1801

Location: N/K

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,003

Type: I

Publications: Manchester & Lancashire FHS microfiche # 1858

Great Bolton 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 17,070
Type: H

Publications: Manchester & Lancashire FHS Index, Microfiche # 1801

Great Bolton 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 22,037
Type: H

Publications: Manchester & Lancashire FHS Index. Microfiche # 1802

Great Bolton 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 28,299
Type: H

Publications: Manchester & Lancashire FHS Index. Microfiche # 1803

Liverpool 1801

Location: City Record Office LA. Mf. Copy at LCL Mf 7/14

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 77,653 Type: H

Notes: Whole city / civil parish; pop count includes five districts

Publications: Analysis of census in P. Laxton, 'Liverpool in 1801: manuscript return

for the first national census of population', *Transactions of the Historical Society of Lancashire and Cheshire*, 130 (1980), 73–113.

Prescot 1821

Location: Warrington Library WCL MS.2020

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 4,468 Type: ?

Notes: Penketh township only [given in Chapman as Penketh]

Prescot 1831

Location: Warrington Library WCL MS.2021

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 5,055 Type: ?

Notes: Penketh township only

Whalley (aka Walley) 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 876
Type: H
Notes: Part only

Whalley (aka Walley) 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,004
Type: H

Whalley (aka Walley) 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,151
Type: H

Wigan 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman 14,060 Pop:

Type:

Notes: Part parish only

LEICESTERSHIRE

1821 Allexton

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 74 Type: Η

Bruntingthorpe (aka Brumthingthorpe, aka Brunting-Thorpe) 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 332 Η Туре:

Bruntingthorpe (aka Brumthingthorpe, aka Brunting-Thorpe) 1801

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 259 Type: Η

Houghton on the Hill 1801

N/K Location: Source: Chapman 299 Pop: Η Type:

Loughborough 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 5,400 Type: Η

Notes: Part parish only

Lutterworth 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman 2,102 Pop: Type: Η

Melton Mowbray 1821 Location: N/K Chapman Source: 2,815 Pop: Ĥ Type: Osgathorpe 1831 N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 344 Type: Η Quorndon 1821 Location: N/K Source: Chapman Type: South Kilworth 1821 Location: N/K Source: Chapman 450 Pop: Η Type: 1801 Thurcaston Location: N/K Source: Chapman 215 Pop: Type: Η Thurcaston 1811 N/K Location: Source: Chapman 259 Pop: Type: Η LINCOLNSHIRE

Location: LinA
Source: Chapman
Pop: 316
Type: H

Canwick 1821

Location: LinA Source: Chapman Type: H

Canwick 1831 Location: LinA Source: Chapman 201 Pop: Η Type: Fillingham 1831 Location: LinA Source: Chapman 308 Pop: Η Type: Fleet 1811 Location: LinA Source: Chapman Pop: 680 Η Type: Fleet 1821 Location: LinA Source: Chapman 776 Pop: Type: Η Fleet 1831 Location: LinA Source: Chapman Pop: 794 Type: Η Gedney Hill 1831 Location: LinA Chapman Source: 371 Pop: Type: Η Grantham 1831 Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 4,590

75

Type:

Notes:

Η

Part parish only

Lincoln, St. Martin 1821 Location: LinA Chapman Source: 1,768 Pop: Type: Η Little Ponton 1801 Location: LinA Source: Chapman Pop: 102 Η Type: Waddington (aka Waddingham) 1821 Location: LinA Source: Chapman Pop: 447 Type: Η Waddington (aka Wadingham) 1811 Location: LinA Source: Chapman Pop: 377 Type: Η Walcot by Folkingham 1821 Location: LinA Source: Chapman Pop: 152 Η Type:

Whaplode 1811

Location: LinA
Source: Chapman
Pop: 962
Type: H

Whaplode (aka Whapload) 1801

Location: LinA
Source: Chapman
Pop: 935
Type: H

Winteringham 1811

Location: LinA Source: Chapman 709 Pop:

Type:

Notes: Part parish only

LONDON

All Hallows, Lombard St. 1811

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 10, 784 and 10, 785

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 620 Type: Η

All Hallows, Lombard St.

1821

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 10, 784 and 10, 785

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 580 Н Туре:

St. Ann Blackfriars (aka St. Anne Blackfriars)

1811

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 7753

Source: Chapman 2.609 Pop:

Type:

Notes: Part parish only

St. Benet Paul's Wharf

1811

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 8932 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 636 Type: Η

St. Benet Paul's Wharf

1821

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 8932 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 552 Н Type:

St. Benet Paul's Wharf

1831

Guildhall GL Ms. 8932 Location: Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 612 Ι Туре:

St. Benet Sherehog

1811

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 7626, 7627

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 152 Type: H

St. Benet Sherehog

1821

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 7626, 7627

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 142 Type: H

St. Botolph Bishopsgate

1811

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 4523 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Type: H

St. Christopher-le-Stocks (aka St. Christopher le-Stock)

1831

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 6146 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 72 Type: H

St. Clement, Eastcheap (aka St. Clement near East-Cheap)

1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 256
Type: H

St. Helen Bishopsgate

1801

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 6852 and 11, 419 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Source: Gibson Pop: 655

Pop: 655 Type: H

St. Helen Bishopsgate

1821

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 6852 and 11, 419

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 696 Type: H

St. John the Baptist upon Walbrook

1811

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. GL Ms. 7618

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 369 Type: H

St. Katherine Coleman

1821

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 7723 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 712 Type: H

St. Katherine Cree

1831

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 7697 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,718 Type: H

St. Margaret Lothbury

1821

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 4620 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 331 Type: H

St. Margaret Lothbury

1831

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 4620 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 252 Type: H

St. Mary Woolchurch Haw

1811

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 8110, 8131 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 229 Type: H

St. Mary Woolchurch Haw

1821

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 8110, 8131

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 206 Type: H

St. Mary Woolchurch Haw

1831

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 8110, 8131

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 247 Type: H

St. Mary Woolnoth

1811

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 8109, 8128

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 457 Type: H St. Mary Woolnoth

1821

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 8109, 8128

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 511 Type: H

St. Mary Woolnoth

1831

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 8109, 8128

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 414 Type: H

St. Mary, Abchurch

1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 505
Type: H

St. Mary, Abchurch

1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 501
Type: H

St. Matthew Friday Street

1831

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 7684 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 225 Type: H

St. Nicholas Acons

1801

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 4306 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 275 Type: H

St. Nicholas Acons

1811

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 4306 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 264 Type: H

St. Nicholas Acons

1821

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 4306 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 180 Type: H

St. Nicholas Acons 1831

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 4306 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 228 Type: H

St. Peter Paul's Wharf (aka St. Peter near Paul's Wharf)

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 8932, 8932A

Source: Gibson Pop: 353 Type: ?

St. Peter Paul's Wharf (aka St. Peter near Paul's Wharf)

N/K Chapman

Pop: 370 Type: H

St. Peter Paul's Wharf

Location:

Location:

Source:

Guildhall GL Ms. 8932, 8932A

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 354 Type: H

St. Peter Westcheap

1831

1801

1811

1831

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 7690 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 226 Type: H

St. Peter, Cornhill

1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 731
Type: H

St. Peter, Cornhill

1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 729
Type: H

St. Sepulchre, Holborn

1801

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 3260/1-5

Source: Chapman

Type: H

St. Sepulchre, Holborn

1811

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 3260/1-5

Source: Chapman

Type: H

St. Sepulchre, Holborn

1821

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 3260/1–5

Source: Chapman

Type: H

St. Swithin London Stone

1811

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 566/1–2 and 3375/1–2

Source: Chapman Pop: 428

Type: H

Notes: With St. Mary Bothaw Chapman

St. Swithin London Stone

1821

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 566/1–2 and 3375/1–2

Source: Chapman Pop: 508

Type: H

Notes: With St. Mary Bothaw Chapman

St. Thomas Apostle

1811

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 674 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 483 Type: H

St. Thomas Apostle

1821

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 674 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 565 Type: H

St. Thomas Apostle

1831

Location: Guildhall GL Ms. 8991 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 531 Type: H

MIDDLESEX

Chelsea, St. Luke 1801

Location: Chelsea Ref. Lib CLS Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 11,604 Type: H

Notes: Population may be 1,637 [Gibson]

Chiswick 1801

Location: Chiswick Lib CSW.; Copy at GLRO F 101; Copy at SoG

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 3,235 Type: H

Notes: Population may be 556 [Gibson]

Hackney, St. John 1811

Location: Rose Lipman Lib HAD P/J/Misc II/1–6 and Mf XP 208; Mf. copy at

SoG. Index published.

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 16,771 Type: H

Publications: East of London FHS (index)

Hackney, St. John 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 22,494
Type: H

Notes: East of London FHS (index)

Hackney, St. John 1831

Location: Rose Lipman Lib HAD P/J/Misc II/1–6 and Mf XP 208

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 31,047

Type: H

Notes: East of London FHS (index)

Publications: Index (according to Gibson) in preparation (5,220 names) [Publication

not traced.]

Hammersmith 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 8,809
Type: H

Hammersmith 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 10,222
Type: H

Hampstead 1801

Location: Swiss Cottage Lib A/G/1, 2

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 4,343

Type:

Notes: Gibson states 691 names; Chapman implies no names.

Hampstead 1811

Location: Swiss Cottage Lib A/G/1, 2; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 5,483 Type: I

Size: X Lodgers: Ages: - Occupations: H
Sex: X Head's firstname: X
Marital Status: - All firstnames: Kin: - Head's surname: X

Notes: Two pages of 900 at Cambridge Group; 842 names in 1811

Harrow (aka Harrow-on-the-Hill) 1831

All surnames:

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 3,861

Type: Notes:

Servants:

Pop count includes Weald and Greenhill.

Hendon 1801

Location: Barnet Library Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,955 Type: H

Publications: Published on CD as: 1801, 1811 and 1821 census of Hendon (Published

by Archive CD Books.

Hendon 1811

Location: Barnet Library
Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,589 Type: H

Publications: See Hendon (1801).

Hendon 1821

Location: Barnet Library Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 3,100 Type: H

Publications: See Hendon (1801).

Little Stanmore 1831

Location: Harrow Library
Source: Chapman
Pop: 876
Type: H

Poplar All Saints 1821

Location: Tower Hamlets Lib POP/750–55 and 756–67 and indexes

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Type: H

Notes: East of London FHS (index)

Poplar All Saints 1831

Location: Tower Hamlets Lib POP/750–55 and 756–67 and indexes

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Type: H

Notes: East of London FHS (index)

St. James Piccadilly 1801

Location: COWAC WCL D1742; Copy and index at SoG

Source: Chapman Pop: 37,053 Type: H

Notes: Great Marlborough Ward only

St. Margaret 1801

Location: COWAC Source: Chapman Type: H

Notes: Some names

St. Margaret 1811

Location: COWAC Source: Chapman

Type: H

Notes: Some names

St. Mary le Strand

Location: COWAC WCL G1050–52 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,704 Type: H

St. Mary le Strand 1811

1801

Location: COWAC WCL G1050–52

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,578 Type: H

St. Mary le Strand 1821

Location: COWAC WCL G1050-52 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,784 Type: H

St. Marylebone 1821

Location: COWAC

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 96,040 Type: H Notes: 9,761 names Publications: Index available:

https://secure.sandn.net/showdetails.php?prod_id=820 [09/03/04]

St. Marylebone 1831

Location: COWAC

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 122,206 Type: H Notes: 11,608 names Publications: Index available:

https://secure.sandn.net/showdetails.php?prod_id=820 [09/03/04]

Willesden 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,413
Type: H

Willesden 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,876
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

NORFOLK

Alderford 1831

Location: NorRO PD43/27 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 40 Type: H

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/a/alderford/

census1831.shtml [09/03/2004]

Aylsham 1821

Location: N/K Source: -Pop: 1,853 Type: H

Publications: Aylsham Local History Society Tom Mollard, ed., AYLSHAM in 1821

The population of the parish of Aylsham recorded by William Morris, Assistant Overseer 28–31st May 1821 (Aylsham: Aylsham Local

History Society, 1997).

Baconsthorpe 1801

Location: NorRO PD334/43 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 239 Type: H

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/b/baconsthorpe/

census1801.shtml [09/03/2004]

Baconsthorpe 1811

Location: NorRO PD334/43 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 218 Type: H

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/b/baconsthorpe/

census1811.shtml [09/03/2004]

Baconsthorpe 1821

Location: NorRO PD334/43 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 314 Type: H

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/b/baconsthorpe/

census1801.shtml [09/03/2004]

Beeston, with Bittering

Location: NorRO PD 377/31 Source: Chapman/See below

Pop: 167 Type: H

Notes: Chapman gives places as Beeston next Milcham

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/b/beeston/

census1801.shtml [09/03/2004]

Bodham 1821

1801

Location: NorRO PD 347/30 Source: See below Pop: 298

Type: H

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/b/bodham/

census1821.shtml [09/03/2004]

Bradfield 1821

Location: NorRO PD 47/26 Source: See below Pop: 195 Type: H

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/b/bradfield/

census1821.shtml [09/03/2004]

Coston 1831

Location: NorRO PD 320/20 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 64 Type: H

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/c/coston/

census1831.shtml [09/03/2004]

Diss 1821

Location: NorRO PD100/144; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,764 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Occupations: Η Ages: Χ Head's firstname: Sex: All firstnames: Marital Status: Kin: Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Dunston 1811

Location: N/K
Source: See below
Pop: 93
Type: S

Dunston 1821

Location: NorRO Dun(c) 80 499x6 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 111 Type: H

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/d/dunston/

census1821.shtml [09/03/2004]

Fincham 1831

Location: Source: N/K

Pop: 756 Type: S

Forncett St. Peter 1831

Location:

NorRO PD 421/90

Source: Pop: Type:

727 S

Gissing 1821

Location:

N/K

Source:

Pop: 544 Type: S

Great Bircham 1811

Location: NorRO PD34/43; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson Pop: 330 Type: H

Χ Size: Lodgers: Occupations: Ages: Χ Head's firstname: Χ Sex: Marital Status: All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Transcript only at Cambridge Group.

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/b/

bircham_great/census1811.shtml [09/03/2004]

Haddiscoe 1821 Location: N/K Source: Pop: 316 Η Type: Haddiscoe 1831 Location: N/K Source: Pop: 383 Η Type: Herthersett 1801 Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 696 Type: Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/h/hethersett/ census1801.shtml [09/03/2004] Holt 1821 Location: N/K Source: Pop: 1,348 Type: S Illington 1801 Location: NorRO PD 488/19/1 Source: See below Pop: 71 Type: Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/i/illington/ census1801.shtml [09/03/2004] Illington 1821

Location: NorRO PD 488/19/2

Source: See below Pop: 96

Type: S

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/i/illington/

census1821.shtml [09/03/2004]

Ingworth 1801

Location: NorRO PD 521/36 Source: Chapman

Source: Chap Pop: 181 Type: H

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/i/ingworth/

census1801.shtml [09/03/2004]

Kimberley 1831

Location: N/K Source: Pop: 138 Type: S

Norwich, St. John de Sepulchre 1831

Location: NorRO PD90/86 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,832 Type: H

Norwich, St. Peter Southgate 1831

Location: NorRO PD163/22 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 627 Type: H

Old Buckenham 1811

Location: N/K See Source: below Pop: 1,024 Type: H

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/b/

buckenham_old/census1811.shtml [09/03/2004]

Old Buckenham 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,134
Type: H

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/b/

buckenham_old/census1811.shtml [09/03/2004]

Ovington 1821

Location: NorRO PD 570/56

Source:
Pop: 219
Type: H

Notes: Not in Chapman

Sparham 1821

Location: NorRO NNAS safe 2, no. 30

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 330 Type: I

Starston 1801

Location: NorRO PD119/124; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 417 Type: H

Χ Size: Lodgers: Ages: Occupations: Η Χ Head's firstname: Sex: Marital Status: All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: % Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Householders in multi-occupied houses not always named.

Stratton Strawless 1831

Location: N/K

Source:

Pop: 218 Type: S

Thorpe next Norwich (aka Thorpe near Norwich) 1801

Location: NorRO PD228/105; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Chapman Pop: 409

Type: H

Lodgers: Size: Χ Ages: Occupations: Χ Head's firstname: Sex: Marital Status: HF All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: Х Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Also known as Thorpe St. Andrew or Thorpe Episcopi

Tuddenham, East 1801

Location: NorRO PD 447/98

Source: See below Pop: 415 Type: H

Notes: Not in Chapman; according to the web page below this listing is for

1810. It abstracts the number of people within households with the name of the head of household. Numbers of those who could read,

along with numbers of bibles and testaments also given.

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s090/genuki/NFK/places/t/

tuddenham east/census1810.shtml [09/03/2004]

Tuttington 1821

Location: NorRO PD 401/28 or MF 942/13; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: See below Pop: 228

Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Ages: Occupations: Sex: Χ Head's firstname: Χ All firstnames: Marital Status: χ Kin· Head's surname: Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Transcript only at Cambridge Group.

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/t/tuttington/

census1821.shtml [09/03/2004]

Tuttington 1831

Location: N/K

Source:

Pop: 228 Type: S

Wacton (aka Wacton, Great or Wacton Magna) 1801

Location: NorRO PD 496/91

Source:

Pop: 241

Type: S

Notes: Not in Chapman

Wacton (aka Wacton, Great or Wacton Magna)

1811

Location: NorRO PD 496/91 Source: Chapman Pop: 257 Ĥ

Type:

Notes: Chapman gives parish name as Wacton Magna

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/w/wacton/

census1811.shtml [09/03/2004]

West Harling 1821

Location: NorRO PD 27/22 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 116 Η Type:

Weston Longville (aka Weston)

1801

Location: NorRO PD 92/35 Source: Chapman Pop: 365 Type: Η

Web:

http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s090/genuki/NFK/places/w/ weston_longville/census1801.shtml [09/03/2004]

Winfarthing 1801

Location: NorRO PD 78/77 or MF RO 588/4

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 565 Ι Type:

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/w/winfarthing/

census1801.shtml [09/03/2004]

Winfarthing 1811

Location: NorRO PD 78/78 or MF RO 588/4

Source: Gibson/Chapman

588 Pop: Type:

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/w/winfarthing/

census1811.shtml [09/03/2004]

Winfarthing 1821

Location: NorRO PD 78/79 or MF RO 588/4

Source: Chapman Pop: 683

Type: I

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/w/winfarthing/

census1821.shtml [09/03/2004]

Woodton 1801

Location: NorRO PD 57/51 or MF 905/11

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 417 Type: H

Web: http://www.uea.ac.uk/~s300/genuki/NFK/places/w/woodton/

census1801.shtml [09/03/2004

Wormegay 1821

Location: NorRO PC44/7 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 362 Type: H

Wormegay 1831

Location: N/K

Source:

Pop: 323 Type: S

NORTHAMPTONSHIRE

Badby 1831

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 583

Type: I

Braunston 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,236
Type: H

Cold Ashby 1811 Location: N/K Chapman Source: 368 Pop: Η Туре: Draughton 1821 N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 170 Type: Η Evenley 1811 Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 397 Type: Η 1831 Evenley Location: N/K Chapman Source: 506 Pop: Type: Ι Eye 1821 N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 747 Type: Η **Great Billing** 1811 Location: N/K Source: Chapman 299 Pop: Type: Η Mears Ashton (aka Mears-Ashby) 1821 Location: N/K Source: Chapman 1,398 Pop: Type: Η Newnham 1831 Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 581

Ι

Type:

Spratton 1811

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: -Pop: 801 Type: H

Size: X Lodgers: Ages: - Occupations: H
Sex: X Head's firstname: X
Marital Status: HE All firstnames: A

Marital Status:HFAll firstnames:-Kin:-Head's surname:XServants:-All surnames:-

Notes: Not in Chapman

Staverton 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 474
Type: H

Walgrave 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 429
Type: H

Werrington 1831

1821

1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 572

Woodford by Thrapston

Type: H

NORTHUMBERLAND

Newcastle, All Saints

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 14,171

Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Newcastle, All Saints 1821

Location: N/K Chapman Source: 16,555 Pop:

Type:

Notes: Part parish only

NOTTINGHAMSHIRE

1831 Beckingham

Location: N/K Source: Chapman 481 Pop: Η Type:

Blythe (aka Blyth) 1831

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 811 Type: Η

1801 Eakring

Location: N/K Source: Chapman 441 Pop: Type: Η

Gamston 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman 385 Pop: Η Type:

Gotham 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 549 Type: Η

Hawton 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 216 Η Type:

Kinoulton (aka Kinolton)

1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 275
Type: H
Notes: Copy

Kinoulton (aka Kinolton)

1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 307
Type: H

Kinoulton (aka Kinolton)

1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 370
Type: H

Laxton

1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 561
Type: H

Notes:

Pop count includes Moorhouse

Laxton

1821

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library
Source: Pop: 615
Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Occupations: Ages: Sex: Χ Head's firstname: Marital Status: All firstnames: Kin· Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Mansfield

1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 9,426
Type: H

Newark (aka Newark-upon-Trent)

Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Pop: 7,236
Type: H

Location:

Size: Χ Lodgers: Η Ages: Occupations: Sex: Χ Head's firstname: Χ Marital Status: All firstnames: Х Kin· Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames: Χ

Notes: Sample pages only at Cambridge Group.

Publications: Notts FHS Records Series Miscellany No 10, Vol. 117

Radford 1821

Location: NotAO PR 14/751–2; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 4,806 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Ages: Χ Occupations: H% Sex: Χ Head's firstname: X% Marital Status: HF% All firstnames: Kin· Head's surname: Х Servants: All surnames:

Systerton (aka Systerstone)

1821

1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 129
Type: H

Thorpe next Newark (aka Thorpe, Neward Hundred)

1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 96
Type: H

Walkeringham 1831

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Chapman

Pop: 529 Type: H

Servants:

Size: Χ Lodgers: % H% Ages: Occupations: Sex: χ Head's firstname: % Marital Status: All firstnames: Kin· Head's surname: X

Notes: Males aged 20+; male servants aged under 20 and 20+; female

servants.

Publications: Notts FHS Records Series Miscellany No 6, Vol. 109

Welbeck Abbey 1801

All surnames:

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library Source: NotAO DD/4P/68/74

Pop: 66 Type: I

Size: Χ Lodgers: Occupations: H% Ages: Head's firstname: Sex: Х Marital Status: All firstnames: Kin· Head's surname: X Servants: All surnames: Χ

West Retford 1811

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: -Pop: 542 Type: H

Size: X Lodgers: Ages: - Occupations: Sex: X Head's firstname: Marital Status: HF% All firstnames: Kin: - Head's surname: Servants: - All surnames: -

Notes: List indicates families in 1811 also resident on 17 March 1794.

Worksop 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 3,702
Type: H

OXFORDSHIRE

Begbroke (aka Begbrooke)

1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 102
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Bletchingdon 1811

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: - Pop: 521 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Ages: Occupations: Χ Head's firstname: Sex: Χ Marital Status: All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Publications: The People of Bletchingdon - lists of inhabitants for the years 1750/51, 1795,

1819, and from the census returns of 1811, 1821 and 1831. Published by

The Eureka Partnership.

Bletchingdon 1821

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library Source:

Pop: 570 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Ages: Occupations: Χ Head's firstname: Sex: Marital Status: All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Publications: The People of Bletchingdon - lists of inhabitants for the years 1750/51, 1795,

1819, and from the census returns of 1811, 1821 and 1831. Published by

The Eureka Partnership.

Bletchingdon 1831

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: -Pop: 641 Type: H

Χ Lodgers: Size: % Ages: % Occupations: Head's firstname: Sex: Χ Х Marital Status: All firstnames: Kin· Head's surname: Χ Χ Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Males aged 20+: male servants aged under 20 and 20+; female

servants.

Publications: The People of Bletchingdon - lists of inhabitants for the years 1750/51, 1795,

1819, and from the census returns of 1811, 1821 and 1831. Published by

The Eureka Partnership.

Britwell Salome 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 192
Type: H

Caversham 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,317
Type: H

Cottisford (aka Cottesford) 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 106
Type: H

Kiddington 1821

Location: OxfRO MSS DD Par. Kiddington c2

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 252 Type: H

North Newington 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Type: H

Rotherford Greys (aka Rotherford-Grays)

1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 668
Type: H

Stoke Lynn (aka Stoke Lyne)

1801

1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 334
Type: H

Location: OxfRO MSS DD Par. Stonesfield b9

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 374 Type: H

Stonesfield

Publications: The Parish of Stonesfield - 1801, 1811, 1821 and 1831 census. Published

by The Eureka Partnership.

Stonesfield 1811

Location: OxfRO MSS DD Par. Stonesfield b9

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 436 Type: H

Publications: The Parish of Stonesfield - 1801, 1811, 1821 and 1831 census. Published

by The Eureka Partnership.

Stonesfield 1821

Location: OxfRO MSS DD Par. Stonesfield b9

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 498 Type: H

Publications: The Parish of Stonesfield - 1801, 1811, 1821 and 1831 census. Published

by The Eureka Partnership.

Stonesfield 1831

Location: OxfRO MSS DD Par. Stonesfield b9

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 535 Type: H

Publications: The Parish of Stonesfield - 1801, 1811, 1821 and 1831 census. Published

by The Eureka Partnership.

Woolvercot 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 493
Type: H

Yarnton 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 237

Type: H

SHROPSHIRE

Location: ShrRO 552/22/89 and transcript in 4232/1b (33*, published

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,007 Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Ellesmere 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 6,056
Type: H

Ellesmere 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 6,540
Type: H

Leighton 1821

Location: ShrRO P159/V/1/2

Source: Chapman Pop: 375

Type: H

Longford 1801

Location: ShrRO Parish register microfiche P171/Fiche 6-7

Source: Chapman Pop: 182 Type: H Longnor 1821

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: -Pop: 222 Type: I

Size: Χ Lodgers: Ages: Occupations: Sex. Α Head's firstname: Х Marital Status: H% All firstnames: % Head's surname: Χ Kin· Servants: % All surnames: %

Shrewsbury, Holy Cross and St. Giles

1821

Location: Shrewsbury CL SLS (299); ShrRO Parish register microfiches

Shrewsbury Holy Cross and St Giles 267–270

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,444 Type: H

Shrewsbury, St. Alkmund

1821

Location: ShrRO P252/V/3/1

Source: -Type: ?

Shrewsbury, St. Alkmund

1831

Location: ShrRO P252/V/3/2

Source: -Type: ?

Shrewsbury, St. Chad

1821

Location: ShrRO Parish register microfiches Shrewsbury St Chad 399–401

Source: Chapman Pop: 7,214 Type: H

Shrewsbury, St. Julian

1831

Location: ShrRO P256/L/6/1
Source: Chapman
Pop: 2,996
Type: H

Shrewsbury, St. Mary

1821

Location: ShrRO Parish register microfiches Shrewsbury St Mary 2273–74

Source: Chapman Pop: 5,328 Type: H Wellington 1821

Location: ShrRO has indexed transcripts

Source: Chapman Pop: 8,390 Type: I

West Felton 1801

Location: ShrRO P298/V/1/4 Source: Chapman

Pop: 926 Type: H

West Felton 1811

Location: ShrRO P298/V/1/4 Source: Chapman

Type: H

SOMERSET

Location: SomRO D\P\ashc/23/1

Source: Chapman Pop: 463 Type: H

Babcary 1801

Location: SomRO D\P\bab/23/3

Source: Chapman Pop: 337

Type: H

Batcombe 1831

Location: SomRO D\P\bat/23/4 Source: Chapman

Pop:

Type: H

Brislington 1831

Location: BriRO P.St LB/OP/7b

Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,294
Type: H

Brockley 1811

Location: SomRO D\P\broc/2/1/1

Source: Chapman Pop: 109 Type: H

Camerton 1811

Location: SomRO DD\SAS/G1818/4/3/1

Source: Chapman Pop: 786 Type: H

Chilton Polden 1811

Location: SomRO D\P\chi.p/13/2/4

Source: Chapman

Type: H

East Cocker (aka East Coker) 1811

Location: SomRO D\P\cok.e/4/1/2

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,007 Type: H?S

Gasper 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman

Type: I

Goathurst 1821

Location: SomRO D\P\gst/23/4
Source: Chapman

Pop: 342 Type: H

High Littleton 1811

Location: SomRO D\P\lit.h/13/2/3

Source: Chapman Pop: 804 Type: H

Notes: Pop count includes Hallabrow

Huntspill 1801

Location: N/K Chapman Source: 1,012 Pop: Type: Η

http://users.bigpond.net.au/stellers/SomersetPRs/ Huntspill1801C.html [09/03/2004] Web:

Mark 1811

SomRO Location: See below Source: 991 Pop: Type: Η

Web: http://www.durtnall.org.uk/Mark/CENSUS.htm [09/03/2004]

Mark 1831

Location: Source:

SomRO D\P\mk/13/10/6

Pop:

Type: Η

Montacute 1821

Location: SomRO D\PC\mont/6/9

Source: Chapman Pop: 973 Η Type:

North Cadbury 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman 908 Pop: Type: Η

Othery 1831

Location: SomRO D\P\oth/23/5

Source: Pop:

Η Type:

Radstock (aka Radstoke) 1801

Location: N/K Source: Chapman 509 Pop: Type:

Notes: Chapman gives date as 1803

Selworthy 1811 Location: SomRO D\P\sel/13/10 and D\P\sel/13/10/3 Source: Chapman 458 Pop: Η Type: Ston Easton 1831 N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 386 Type: Ι Stowey 1811 Location: SomRO D\P\sty/3/1/1 Source: Chapman Pop: 195 Type: Η Stowey 1821 Location: SomRO D\P\sty/3/1/1 Source: Chapman 208 Pop: Type: Η Tintinhull 1821 Location: SomRO D\P\tin/23/3 Source: Chapman 388 Pop: Type: Η Wedmore 1821 Location: $SomROD\P\wed/23/4$ Source: Chapman 3,079 Pop: Type: Η Wedmore 1831 Location: $SomROD\P\wed/23/4$ Source: Chapman 3,557 Pop: Η Type: Wincanton 1801

Location: SomRO D\P\winc/23/2

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,772 Type: H

Wincanton 1811

Location: SomRO D\P\winc/23/2

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,850 Type: H

Wrington 1821

Location: SomRO D\P\wri/23/1

Source: Chapman Pop: 923 Type: H

STAFFORDSHIRE

Biddulph 1801

Location: StaRO D3539/1/48; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,180 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Occupations: Ages: Sex: Head's firstname: Χ Marital Status: H% All firstnames: Χ Kin: Head's surname: Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Address

Blymhill 1831

Location: StaRO D1044/7/2 Source: Chapman Pop: 566 Type: H

Notes: Pop count includes Blymhill, Brineton and Ivetsey

Colwich 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 484
Type: H

Litchfield, St. Mary 1801

Location: LicRO D27/9/4
Source: Chapman
Pop: 2,422
Type: H

Litchfield, St. Mary

Location: n/k

Source: Chapman Pop: 2,780 Type:

Litchfield, St. Michael 1801

1831

Location: LicRO D27/9/4

Source: Pop:

Туре: Η

1811 Newcastle under Lyme

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 6.175 Type: Η

Sedgley 1831

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Pop: 20,577 Type: Η

Size: Lodgers: Ages: Occupations: HM Head's firstname: Sex: Χ Marital Status: All firstnames: H%

Kin: Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Number of children per household, religious denomination. Notes in

some cases possession of PB (Prayer Book?) and T (Testament?). List independent of census. Complete transcription for most towns and

villages in the Archdeaconry of Stafford.

Publications: Ann J. Kettle, ed., A list of families in the Archdeaconry of Stafford,

Staffordshire Record Society, 1976.

Stafford, St. Mary 1801

Location: N/K Source: Chapman 3,898 Pop: Η Type:

Walsall 1801

Walsall Loc Hist Centre P312 with photocopies and indexes Location:

Source: Chapman 5,177 Pop: Type:

Notes: Whole civil parish, including Bloxwich and Bentley Walsall 1811

Location: Walsall Loc Hist Centre P312 with photocopies and indexes

Source: Chapman Pop: 5,541 Type: H

Notes: Borough township only

Walsall 1821

Location: Walsall Loc Hist Centre P312 with photocopies and indexes

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 5,504 Type: H

Type: H Notes: Part parish only

Walsall 1831

Location: Walsall Loc Hist Centre P312 with photocopies and indexes

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 6,401 Type: H

Wednesbury 1801

Location: StaRO D4383/6/8/1; Photocopies at Wednesbury District Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 4,160 Type: H

Wednesbury 1811

Location: StaRO D4383/6/8/2; Photocopies at Wednesbury District Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 5,372 Type: H

Wednesbury 1821

Location: StaRO D4383/6/8/3; Photocopies at Wednesbury District Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 6,471 Type: H

Yoxhall, St. Peter 1811

Location: StaRO D1/A/PZz/2

Source: Pop:

Type: ?

Note: Comparison with 1801 census

SUFFOLK

Aldham 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 292
Type: H

Athelington 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 129
Type: H

Brome (aka Broome) 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 278
Type: H

Brome (aka Broome) 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 377
Type: H

Cretingham 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 387
Type: H

Glemsford 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,148
Type: H

Glemsford 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,275
Type: H

Holton St. Mary 1801

Location: N/K

Source: Chapman

Type: I

Horringer 1801

Location:

Source: Chapman

N/K

Type: H

Ipswich St. Clement 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,584
Type: H

Ipswich St. Clement 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 3,305
Type: H

Ipswich St. Clement 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 4,424
Type: H

Ipswich St. Margaret 1831

Location: SuffRO (Ips) FB93/G6/1–6

Source: Gibson/Chapman Pop: 4,300

Pop: 4,300 Type: H

Ipswich St. Peter 1801

Location: SuffRO (Ips) FB101/G11/1 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 986 Type: H

Ipswich St. Peter 1811

Location: SuffRO (Ips) FB101/G11/2

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,125 Type: H Ipswich St. Peter 1831

Location: SuffRO (Ips) FB101/G11/1,2,3,

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,646 Type: H

Lowestoft 1821

Location: SufRO (Lowestoft) 13/1,2 and photocopies S312 Low, both indexed

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 3,675 Type: H

Lowestoft 1831

Location: SufRO (Lowestoft) 13/1,2 and photocopies S312 Low, both indexed

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 4,238 Type: H

Metfield 1811

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: - 611 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Ages: Occupations: HM Head's firstname: Sex: Χ Χ Marital Status: HF All firstnames: Head's surname: Kin: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Pettistree (aka Petistree) 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 260

Type: 260

Playford 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 264
Type: H

Southwold 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,676
Type: H

Swilland 1811 Location: N/K Chapman Source: Pop: 237 Type: Η Troston 1821 Location: N/K Source: Chapman 371 Pop: Type: Η Walsham le Willows 1801 N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 993 Type: Η Westley 1821 Location: N/K Chapman Source: 124 Pop: Type: Ι Westley 1831 N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 132 Type: Η Wetherden 1821 Location: N/K Source: Chapman 332 Pop: Type: Η Wickhambrook 1811 Location: N/K Source: Chapman 1,160 Pop: Η Type: Wickhambrook 1821 Location: N/K Source: Chapman 1,295 Pop:

Type:

Η

Wickhambrook 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,400
Type: H

Worlingworth 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 653
Type: H

SURREY

Location: SurRO

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 767 Type: ?

Banstead 1831

Location: SurRO 2375/1/5 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 991 Type: ?

Bletchingley 1801

Location: SurRO 2727/1/4884, 86. Indexed copies at East Surrey FHS.

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,344 Type: H

Bletchingley 1811

Location: SurRO 2727/1/4884, 86. Indexed copies at East Surrey FHS.

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,116 Type: H

Chobham 1801

Location: SurRO P34/17/1 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,176 Type: I Chobham 1811

Location: SurRO P34/17/2, 3, copies at West Surrey FHS

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,329 Type: H

Chobham 1831

Location: SurRO P34/17/2, 3, copies at West Surrey FHS

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,937 Type: H

Clapham 1801

Location: GLRO P95/TRI 1/72 and typescript indexes in R358

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 3,864 Type: H

Clapham 1811

Location: GLRO P95/TRI 1/72 and Ts. Indexes in R358

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 3,864 Type: H

Clapham 1821

Location: GLRO P95/TRI 1/72 and Ts. Indexes in R358

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 7,151 Type: H

Croydon 1811

Location: Croydon Pub Lib Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 7,801

Type: H

Publications: H. Shaw, comp., Index to 1811 census, Croydon (London East Surrey

FHS, 1983).

Ewhurst 1801

Location: SurRO P38/3/291 with Ts. Index

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 644 Type: H Guildford 1801

Location: Guildford Muniment Room GMR93/1, copies at GL, SoG and West

Surrey FHS

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,634 Type: H

Merstham 1831

Location: SurRO
Source: Chapman
Pop: 713
Type: ?

Mitcham 1811

Location: SurRO 2553/7 with Ts. Index Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 4,175 Type: H

Mortlake 1801

Location: SurRO 2397/6/42,43,44, indexed copies at East Surrey FHS

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,748 Type: H

Mortlake 1811

Location: SurRO 2397/6/42, 43, 44, indexed copies at East Surrey FHS

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,021 Type: ?

Mortlake 1821

Location: SurRO 2397/6/42, 43, 44, indexed copies at East Surrey FHS

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,484 Type: H

Newdigate 1801

Location: Guildford Muniment Room GMR PSH/NE/9/1, published

[Publication not traced]

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 445 Type: H Newdigate 1811

Location: GLRO

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 447 Type: ?

Newington (aka Newington St. Mary) 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 23,853
Type: H

Newington (aka Newington St. Mary) 1831

Location: Southwark Loc Stud Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 44,526 Type: H

Nutfield 1801

Location: SurRO

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 524 Type: H

Nutfield 1811

Location: SurRO

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 631 Type: ?

Nutfield 1831

Location: SurRO
Source: Chapman
Pop: 718
Type: ?

Oxted (aka Oxtead) 1801

Location: SurRO P3/5/114, 117; indexed copies at East Surrey FHS. Copy at

CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson Pop: 644 Type: H

Х Size: Lodgers: M Ages: Occupations: Χ Head's firstname: Sex: Marital Status: All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Oxted (aka Oxtead) 1811

Location: SurRO P3/5/114, 117; indexed copies at East Surrey FHS; Copy at

CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson Pop: 754 Type: H

Size: X Lodgers: Ages: - Occupations: X
Sex: X Head's firstname: M
Marital Status: - All firstnames: Kin: - Head's surname: X

Kin: - Head's surnan Servants: - All surnames:

Oxted (aka Oxtead) 1821

Location: SurRO P3/5/114, 117; indexed copies at East Surrey FHS. Copy at

CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson Pop: 777 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Occupations: Χ Ages: Sex: Χ Head's firstname: M Marital Status: HF All firstnames: Kin· Head's surname: χ All surnames: Servants:

Southwark Christ Church 1821

Location: GLRO P92/CTC/416, 424 and Mf. Copy in X15/158. Index at SLSL;

Source: Chapman
Pop: 13,339
Type: H

Notes: West division only.

Southwark, Christ Church 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 13,705
Type: H

Southwark St. Saviour 1811

Location: Southwark Loc Stud SLSL Ms.202–211 and index in 929.01 St.S;

SELON Index

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 15,349 Type: H Southwark St. Saviour 1831

Location: Southwark Loc Stud SLSL Ms.202–211 and index in 929.01

St.S;SELON Index Gibson/Chapman

Source: Gibson Pop: 18,006

Type:

Streatham 1831

Location: Minet Lib, Lambeth LAD P/S/3/13 with index

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 5,068 Type: ?

Stoke d'Abernon 1811

Location: SurRO P53/4/17; indexed copy at East Surrey FHS

Source: Chapman Pop: 130 Type: ?

Notes: Possibly not dated, but Chapman gives this as 1811 in 5th ed.

Excluding Oxshott.

Stoke d'Abernon 1831

Location: SurRO P53/4/17 Source: Chapman Pop: 289

Pop: 289 Type: ?

Notes: Not dated. Excluding Oxshott.

Thursley 1821

Location: SurRO P46/3/1, copy at West Surrey FHS.

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 608 Type: H

SUSSEX

Chiddingley 1821

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Pop: 870

Pop: 870 Type: I

Size: Х Lodgers: Ages: Χ Occupations: Η Sex: Head's firstname: Marital Status: % All firstnames: Χ Kin· % Head's surname: Χ Servants: X All surnames:

Notes: Later deaths noted, specifying in some cases year of death.

Publications: 1821 census Chiddingly, Sussex (PBN Publications, East Bourne, 1989)

[1 microfiche]; For analysis see: June A. Sheppard, 'Out-migration 1821–1851 from a Wealden parish: Chiddingly', *Local Population*

Studies, 59 (1997), 13-25.

East Dean 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 330
Type: H

Publications: East Dean, Sussex 1821 census (PBN publications, Eastbourne, 1989)

East Grinstead 1811

Location: WSusRO Par 348/26/2/6 with copy and index in MP2394

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,804 Type: H

East Grinstead 1821

Location: WSusRO Par 348/26/2/7–10

Source: Chapman Pop: 3,153 Type: H

Notes: Incomplete

East Grinstead 1831

Location: WSusRO Par 348/26/2/7–10

Source: Chapman Pop: 3,364 Type: H

Notes: Incomplete

East Hoathly (aka Easthothly)

1811

Location: WSusRO Source: Chapman Pop: 468

Type:

Publications: East Hoathly, Sussex Population Census 28th May 1821 (PBN

Publications, Eastbourne, 2002)

East Hoathly (aka Easthothly)

1821

1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 510
Type: I

Greatham

Location: WSusRO Par 209/7/3 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 71 Type: H

Hailsham 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,278
Type: H

Publications: Hailsham Population Census 1821 (PBN Publications, Eastbourne).

Hailsham 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,445
Type: H

Publications: Hailsham Population Census 1831 (PBN Publications, Eastbourne).

Hartfield 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,440
Type: H

Publications: Hartfield Population Census 1821 (PBN Publications, Eastbourne).

Hasting, St. Clement

1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 2,981
Type: H

Publications: Hastings St. Clement Population Census 1831 (PBN Publications,

Eastbourne).

Hastings, St. Mary 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman

Type: H

Publications: Hastings St. Mary Population Census 1821 (PBN Publications,

Eastbourne).

Hastings, St. Mary 1831

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Type: H

Publications: Hastings St. Mary Population Census 1831 (PBN Publications,

Eastbourne).

Hurstpierpoint (aka Hurst-Perpoint) 1811

Location: WSusRO Par 400/37/74–78

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,184 Type: H

Hurstpierpoint (aka Hurst-Perpoint) 1821

Location: WSusRO Par 400/37/74–78

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,321 Type: H

Kirdford 1811

Location: WSusRO Par 116/37/1 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,452 Type: H

Lewes, St. Michael 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 933
Type: H

Publications: Lewes St. Michael Population Census 1811 (PBN Publications,

Eastbourne).

Lewes, St. John (aka Lewes St. John sub Castro) 1831

Location: N/K Source: Chapman

Type: H

Publications: Lewes St. John sub Castro Population Census 1831 (PBN Publications,

Eastbourne).

Rusper 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 450

Type: 450 H

Rusper 1831

Location: WSusRO Par 163/37/3 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 531 Type: ?

Tangmere 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 174
Type: I

Ticehurst 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,436
Type: H

Publications: Ticehurst Population Census 1801 (PBN Publications, Eastbourne).

Ticehurst 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,593
Type: H

Ticehurst 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,966
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Ticehurst 1831

Location: N/K Source: Chapman

Pop:

Type: H

Publications: Ticehurst Population Census 1831 (PBN Publications, Eastbourne).

Uckfield 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,261
Type: H
Publications: Uckfield Pop

Publications: *Uckfield Population Census 1831* (PBN Publications, Eastbourne).

Wisborough Green 1831

Location: N/K

Source: Chapman 3 [not in Chapman 5]

Pop: 1,782 Type: ?

WARWICKSHIRE

Arrow 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 287
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only; pop count includes Ragley

Astley 1831

Location: WarRO DR 19/629. Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 340 Type: H

Austrey 1821

Location: WarRO DRB 48/108. Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 542 Type: H

Barston 1811

Location: WarRO DRB 46/87. Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 342 Type: I

Barston 1821

Location: WarRO DRB 46/88. Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 344 Type: H Bedworth 1821

Location: WarRO DR 225/411.

Source: Chapman Pop: 3,519 Type: H

Bidford 1831

Location: WarRO HR 71/43. Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,268 Type: H

Brinklow 1801

Location: WarRO DR 366/210/2. Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 615 Type: H

Bulkington 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,792
Type: H

Church Lawford 1801

Location: WarRO DR 309/2/2. Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 302 Type: H

Coleshill 1811

Location: WarRO DR(B)100/127 Source: Chapman

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,639 Type: H

Coleshill 1821

Location: WarRO DR(B)100/128–129

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,760 Type: H

Coleshill 1831

Location: WarRO DR(B)100/130

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,853 Type: H

Cubbington 1811

Location: WarRO DR452/55 Source: Chapman

Pop: 544 Type: H

Cubbington 1821

Location: WarRO DR452/55 Source: Chapman

Pop: 614 Type: H

Farnborough 1821

Location: WarRO DR 299/16. Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 356 Type: H

Halford (aka Halford-Bridge) 1831

Location: WarRO DR362/61 Source: Chapman

Pop: 315
Type: H

Hillmorton 1801

Location: WarRO DR256/37 Source: Chapman

Pop: 620 Type: H

Kineton (aka Kington) 1821

Location: WarRO DR 212/194. Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 782 Type: H

Old Stratford 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,556
Type: H

Oversley 1831

Location: WarRO DR734/40

Source: Pop:

Type: H

Rugby 1821

Location: Rugby Lib (transcript at WRO B. Rug.Bil (P)). Copy at CAMPOP

Library.

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,300 Type: I

Size: X Lodgers:

Ages:XOccupations:H%Sex:XHead's firstname:%Marital Status:-All firstnames:-Kin:-Head's surname:XServants:-All surnames:-

Sheldon 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 423
Type: H

Southam 1821

Location: WarRO DR583/179

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,161 Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Stratford upon Avon 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Pop: 2,418
Type: ?

Stratford upon Avon 1831

Location: Shakespeare's Birthplace Trust SBT BRT 8/274 (683)

Source: Chapman Pop: 3,488 Type: H

Notes: Borough only

Strickenhill 1821

Location: Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Ι Type:

Size: Lodgers: Χ X Occupations: HM Ages: Sex: Χ Head's firstname: Χ Н% Marital Status: All firstnames: Χ

Kin: Head's surname: Χ Χ Servants: Χ All surnames: Χ

Stivichall (aka Stivieshall) 1821

Location: WarRO DR331/37/299

Source: Chapman Pop: 96 Ι Type:

Tamworth (in Arden) 1821

Location: Copies at CAMPOP Library, and at ROB

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,938 Type: Ι

Servants:

Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Occupations: Η Ages: Χ Head's firstname: Sex: Х Marital Status: HM% All firstnames: Χ Kin: Head's surname: Χ Χ

Some relationships specified in first few pages. Married males Notes:

heading households identified for first third of list.

All surnames:

Warwick, St. Mary 1811

Location: WarRO DR126/858. Copies at ROB

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 4,953 Η Туре:

Warwick St. Mary 1821

Location: WarRO DR126/859-860. Copies at ROB

Source: Gibson/Chapman

6,103 Pop: Type: Η

Warwick St. Mary 1831

Location: WarRO DR126/861. Copies at ROB

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 6,678 Type: H

Warwick, St. Nicholas 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 2,431
Type: H

WESTMORLAND

Beetham 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 668
Type: H

Beetham 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 748
Type: H

Crosby Ravensworth 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 764
Type: H

WILTSHIRE

Location: WilRO 1719/78 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,165 Type: I

Bromham 1831

Location: WilRO 518/21 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,556 Type: H Downton 1831

Location: WilRO PR/Downton: St. Lawrence/1306/125

Source: Chapman Pop: 3,652 Type: H

Foxley 1811

Location: WilRO PR/Foxley/592/1

Source: Chapman

Pop: 65 Type: H

Grittleton 1811

Location: WilRO PR/Grittleton: St. Mary/1620/31

Source: Chapman

Pop: 332 Type: H

Highworth 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,493
Type: H

Horningsham 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,030
Type: H

Keevil (aka Kevil) 1801

Location: WilRO PR/Keevil: St. Leonard/653/30

Source: Chapman Pop: 466 Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Malmesbury 1811

Location: WilRO 1589/38
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,152
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Malmesbury 1821

Location: WilRO 1589/38
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,322
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Malmesbury 1831

Location: WilRO 1589/38 Source: Chapman Pop: 1,424 Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Stratford sub Castle (aka Stratford-under-the-Castle) 1821

Location: WilRO 1076/63 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 385 Type: H

Steeple Ashton 1821

Location: WilRO 730/289 Source: Chapman Type: H

Stockton 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 274
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Stourton 1821

Location: WilRO 1240/38
Source: Chapman
Pop: 346
Type: I

Stourton 1831

Location: WilRO 1240/39
Source: Chapman
Pop: 350
Type: H

Sutton Veny 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 689

Type: H

Sutton Veny 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 848
Type: H

Trowbridge 1821

Location: WilRO 206/119. Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Chapman Pop: 9,545 Type: H

Size: Х Lodgers: Ages: Χ Occupations: Η Sex: Χ Head's firstname: Marital Status: All firstnames: Head's surname: Χ Kin: Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Records for first 352 houses persons employed in agriculture and trade

but for remainder of list (1786 houses and 2169 families) families in agriculture and trade; Households not always clearly distinguished; marital status consistently recorded; 'pensioners' listed separately.

Woodborough 1811

Location: WilRO 1737/5 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 325 Type: H

WORCESTERSHIRE

Belbroughton 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,489
Type: H

Bewdley 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman

Type: H

Bromsgrove 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 6,932
Type: H

Bromsgrove 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 7,519
Type: H

Himbleton 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 437
Type: H

Kidderminster 1801

Location: WorRO 850KIDDERMINSTERSTMARY/4766/8/i

Source: Chapman Pop: 8,036 Type: H

Notes: Pop count includes town (6,110), and foreign (1,926)

Kidderminster 1811

Location: WorRO 850KIDDERMINSTERSTMARY/4766/8/i

Source: Chapman Pop: 10,025 Type: H

Notes: Part parish only; Pop count includes town (8,038), and foreign (1,987)

Kidderminster 1821

Location: WorRO 850KIDDERMINSTERSTMARY/4766/8/i

Source: Chapman Pop: 12,752 Type: H

Notes: Part parish only; Pop count includes town (10,709), and foreign

(2,043)

Kidderminster 1831

Location: WorRO 850KIDDERMINSTERSTMARY/4766/8/i

Source: Chapman Pop: 17,913 Type: H

Notes: Part parish only; Pop count includes town (14,981), and foreign

(2,932)

Ripple 1821

Location: WorRO 850RIPPLE/9422/9/ii/1

Source: Chapman Pop: 780 Type: H

Tardebigge (aka Tardebigg) 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 3,627
Type: H

Wolverley 1831

Location: WorRO 265.91:BA 1693/2 and Mf.X965.91

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 1,840 Type: H

Notes: Pop count includes Kingsford

Worcester, St. John 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman

Type: H

YORKSHIRE

Allerston 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 344
Type: H

Beeford 1811

Location: ERYArc PE114
Source: Chapman
Pop: 524
Type: H

Beeford 1821

Location: ERYArc PE114
Source: Chapman
Pop: 620
Type: H

Boynton 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 109

Η Type:

1821 Boynton

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 123 Η Type:

1831 Boynton

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 114 Н Type:

Bracewell 1801

Location: Original at LanRO. Photocopy at WYAS (Leeds) Acc.2776

Source: Chapman

Туре: Η

Calverley (aka Calverley-cum-Farsley) 1811

Location: WYAS (Leeds) P17/168 Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 2,390 Η Type:

Publications: Index published by Yorkshire Archaeological Society. See:

http://www.yorkshireroots.org.uk/publist02.htm

1811 Carleton (aka Carleton in Craven)

Location: WYAS (Leeds) P18/149; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: Gibson/Chapman

230 Pop: Н Type:

Χ Size: Lodgers: Ages: Occupations: Sex: Χ Head's firstname: % All firstnames: Marital Status: Kin· Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Dunnington 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman 494 Pop: Type: Η

Dunnington 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 551
Type: H

Elland-cum-Greetland 1801

Location: WYAS (Calderdale) MISC:130

Source: Chapman Pop: 3,385

Type: H

Notes: Township in par. Halifax.

Elland-cum-Greetland 1811

Location: WYAS (Calderdale) MISC:130

Source: Chapman Pop: 3,963 Type: H

Notes: Township in par. Halifax

Emley 1811

Location: WYAS, Kirklees KX295 (photocopy)

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,120 Type: H

Notes: Photocopy at CAAMPOP; Township in par. Halifax

Farsley 1811

Location: WYAS (Leeds) 'Pudsey B'; Copy at CAMPOP Library; copies also at

Leeds Central Library and Pudsey Library

Source: Chapman

Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Ages: Occupations: Η Χ Head's firstname: Sex: M Marital Status: HF All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Township in par. Caverley.

Hedon 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,080
Type: H

Hedon 1821

Location: Source: N/K

Type:

Chapman H

Hedon 1831

Location: Source: N/K Chapman

Type:

Hilston 1811

Location: Source:

N/K Chapman

Η

Type: H

Hilston 1821

Location: Source:

N/K Chapman

Η

Type:

Hipperholme-cum-Brighouse 1801

Location: Calderdale Lib MISC: 7/115

Source: Chapman

Type: H

Notes: Township in Halifax parish.

Hipperholme-cum-Brighouse 1811

Location: Calderdale Lib MISC:7/115

Source: Chapman

Type: H

Notes: Township in Halifax parish.

Hipperholme-cum-Brighouse 1831

Location: N/K Source: Chapman

Type: H

Notes: Township in Halifax parish.

Honley 1811

Location: WYAS (Kirklees) CP/Ho/Ce/1

Source: Chapman

Type: H

Notes: Township in Almondsbury parish

Web: http://website.lineone.net/~gburhouse/1811cen.htm [09/03/2004

Huntington 1821 Location: N/K Chapman Source: Pop: 346 Η Type: Kilburn 1811 Location: N/K Source: Chapman Type: Langfield 1801 Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 1,170 Type: Η Leeds 1801 Location: WYAS (Leeds) P68/104 with photocopies. Copy at Leeds Central Library. Source: Chapman 53,162 Pop: Type: Η Notes: Whole township except northwest and northeast divisions. Publications: Index published by Yorkshire Archaeological Society. See: http://www.yorkshireroots.org.uk/publist02.htm Lissett 1801 Location: N/K Source: Chapman 122 Pop: Η Type: Lissett 1811 Location: N/K Source: Chapman Type: Marfleet 1811 Location: N/K Source: Chapman

142

121

Η

Pop:

Туре:

Marfleet 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 127
Type: H

Middleton upon Leven 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 406
Type: H

Midgley 1801

Location: WYAS (Calerdale), Halifax HAS:67; Copy at CAMPOP Library

Source: -Pop: 1,209 Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Occupations: Χ Ages: Χ Head's firstname: Sex: Marital Status: All firstnames: Kin: Head's surname: X Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Township in Halifax parish

Midgley 1811

Location: WYAS (Calderdale), Halifax HAS: 67; Copy at CAMPOP Library,

copy also at SoG

Source: -Type: H

Size: Χ Lodgers: Χ Ages: Occupations: χ Head's firstname: Sex: Marital Status: HF All firstnames: Head's surname: Kin: Χ Servants: All surnames:

Notes: Occupational designations: farmers, trade, gentry. Township in

Halifax parish.

Nether Hallam 1831

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Type: H

Publications: Index available on disk from Sheffield & District Family History

Society. For details see:

http://www.sheffieldfhs.org.uk/Pub_con/comp-disk.htm [9 Jan 2004]

Newton Kyme 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 149
Type: H

Ossett cum Gawthorpe 1821

Location: Wakefield Lib photocopy of original in private collection

Source: Chapman

Type: H

Notes: Township in Dewsbury parish.

Oswaldkirk (aka Oswald-Kirk) 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 212
Type: H

Patrington 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,016
Type: H

Sandal Magna (aka Great Sandall) 1801

Location: WYAS (Wakefield) D20

Source: Chapman Pop: 765 Type: H

Sandal Magna (aka Great Sandall) 1821

Location: WYAS (Wakefield) D20

Source: Chapman Pop: 888 Type: H

Skipwith 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 250
Type: H

Notes: Part parish only

Snaith 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 743
Type: H

Snaith 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 885
Type: H

South Otterington 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 155
Type: H

Sowerby 1811

Location: Calderdale Lib CDA STA:215/3 and SPL:166

Source: Chapman

Type: H

Notes: Township in Halifax parish.

Spofforth 1801

Location: WYAS (Leeds) P96/118/17/1 and P96/131–132

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 859 Type: H

Publications: Index published by Yorkshire Archaeological Society. See:

http://www.yorkshireroots.org.uk/publist02.htm

Spofforth 1821

Location: WYAS (Leeds) P96/118/17/1 and P96/131–132

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 895 Type: H

Publications: Index published by Yorkshire Archaeological Society. See:

http://www.yorkshireroots.org.uk/publist02.htm

Spofforth 1831

Location: WYAS (Leeds) P96/118/17/1 and P96/131–132

Source: Gibson/Chapman

Pop: 914 Type: H

Publications: Index published by Yorkshire Archaeological Society. See:

http://www.yorkshireroots.org.uk/publist02.htm

Stansfield 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman

Type: H

Swinton 1801

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 473
Type: H

Swinton 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,050
Type: H

Swinton 1831

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 1,252
Type: H

Thirsk 1811

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 2,155
Type: H

Publications: See details in correspondence: Local Population Studies, 7 (1971), 58–59.

Thirsk 1821

Location: N/K
Source: Chapman
Pop: 2,533
Type: H

Thornhill 1821

Location: WYAS (Kirklees) KC1044

Source: Chapman Pop: 1,930 Type: H

Thurstonland 1821

Location: WYAS (Kirklees) KC271

Source: Chapman

Type: H

Notes: Township in Kirkburton parish

Thybergh (aka Thrybergh)

1801

N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 247

Type:

Н

Todmorton and Walsden

1811

Location: Source:

N/K Chapman

Type:

Η

Tong

1801

Location:

Bradford Dist Arch Tong 12K/3, 6, 13

Source:

Chapman

Type: Notes:

Township in Birstall parish

Tong

1811

1821

Location:

Bradford Dist Arch Tong 12K/3, 6, 13

Source:

Chapman

Type: Notes:

Township in Birstall parish

Web:

Publications:

http://www.calverley.info/cen_tong_1811.htm [09/03/2004]

Index published by Yorkshire Archaeological Society. See: http://www.yorkshireroots.org.uk/publist02.htm

Tong

Location: Source:

Bradford Dist Arch Tong 12K/3, 6, 13 Chapman

Type:

Η

Notes:

Township in Birstall parish

Web:

Publications:

http://www.calverley.info/cen_tong_1821.htm [09/03/2004] Index published by Yorkshire Archaeological Society. See:

http://www.yorkshireroots.org.uk/publist02.htm

Warley

1821

Location:

Calderdale Lib OR:157/1; Photocopy at West Yorkshire Archive

Service HQ, Wakefield, WAY in ZM4 (937)

Source:

Chapman

Type:

Notes:

Township in Halifax parish.

Welton

1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 516 Η Type:

West Heslerton 1821

N/K Location: Chapman Source: Pop: 273 Η Type:

Westow 1801

N/K Location: Source: Chapman Pop: 274 Type: Н

Yarm 1821

Location: N/K Source: Chapman Pop: 1,504 Η Type:

Yeadon 1811

Location: Leeds Dist Arch Aireborough UDC, Yeadon Township Papers, and

photocopy Chapman

Source: Type:

Notes: Township in par. Guiseley.

Publications: Index published by Yorkshire Archaeological Society. See:

http://www.yorkshireroots.org.uk/publist02.htm

Yeadon 1821

Location: Leeds Dist Arch Aireborough UDC, Yeadon Township Papers

Source: Chapman

Type: Η

Notes: Township in par. Guiseley

Publications: Index published by Yorkshire Archaeological Society. See:

http://www.yorkshireroots.org.uk/publist02.htm

Yeardon 1831

Location: WYAS (Leeds) Aireborough UDC, Yeadon Township Papers

Source: Chapman

Type: Η

Notes: Township in par. Guiseley.

Publications: Index published by Yorkshire Archaeological Society. See:

http://www.yorkshireroots.org.uk/publist02.htm

York, St. Cuthbert 1811

Location: N/K Source: Chapman 667 Pop: Type: Η

York, St. Giles (aka Giles, St., in the Suburbs)

N/K

Location: Source:

Chapman

Pop:

545

Type:

Η

York, St. Giles

1811

1801

Location:

N/K

Source: Pop:

Chapman

Type:

726 Η

York, St. Giles

1821

Location:

N/K

Source: Pop:

Chapman 881

Type:

Η

York, St. Martin

1811

Location: Source:

N/K Chapman

Type:

York, St. Maurice (aka Maurice, St., in the Suburbs)

1811

Location: Source:

N/K Chapman

Pop: Type: 596 Η